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PROFILE: Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. (DTG) is a Fortune 1000 Company headquartered in Tulsa, Oklahoma. Driven by the mission,
Value Every Time, the Company's brands, Dollar Rent A Car and Thrifty Car Rental, serve value-conscious travelers in approximately 70 countries.
Dollar and Thrifty have approximately 800 corporate and franchised locations in the United States and Canada, and they have operations at
most major airports. The Company’s more than 7,000 employees are located mainly in North America, but global service capabilities exist
through an ever expanding franchise network. The common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol DTG.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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M AsReported (] EITF 0246 Impact

* The Company reported net income of $19.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003, £xcluding the $13.3 million
after tax impact of the accounting change to implement

EITF 02:16, the Company would have earned $33. milfion on

a pro forma basis for the year ended December 31, 2003,

(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts and revenue per vehicle)

AVERAGE NUMBER OF
RENTAL VEHICLES OPERATED
In Thousands

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA :
Total revenue $ 1,227,886 $ 1,133,194 § 1,050,170 § 1,114370 § 1,021,190
Vehicle rental revenue $ 1,014,121 $§ 897384 $§ 821,834 $§ 844,668 § 736,845
Vehicle leasing revenue $ 144368 $ 168,792 $ 162,204 $ 198,686 $ 218,614
Other revenue $ 69,397 § 67,018 $ 66132 § 71,016 § 65,731
Net income $ 19840 § 46,831 $ 13,837 § 78,009 $ 59,586
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.81 § 193 § 057 § 323§ 2.47
Diluted $ 078 3§ 1.88 3 057 % 318 §% 2.43
Weighted average shares 25,393,581 24,894,381 24,487,543 24,539,462 24,485,101
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Cash and cash equivalents $ 192006 8 143485 § 37532 8§ 38493 § 77,500
Restricted cash and investments $ 536547 $§ 334849 § 48,000 $ 30,760 $ 144,671
Revenue-earning vehicles, net $ 2,136,719 $ 2,006,644 § 1,525,553 § 1,522,388 § 1,507,692
Total assets $ 3,412,499 § 3,115477 % 2,163,692 $ 2,100,374 § 2,171,653
Tortal debt $ 2,442,162 $ 2,224303 $§ 1,516,733 § 1,424,021 $ 1,555,609
Stockholders' equity $ 533,457 $§ 499,481 $ 463,321 $ 458,139 § 379,127
COMPANY-OWNED STORES DATA:
VEHICLE RENTAL DaTA (UL.S. and Canada)
Average number of vehicles operated 80,302 69,272 68,696 65,702 59,218
Number of rental days 24,654,084 21,056,362 20,640,229 20,347,296 18,155,768
Monthly average revenue per vehicle $ 1,052 § 1,080 § 997 % 1,071 $ 1,037
VEHICLE LEaSING Data (U.S, and Canada)
Average number of vehicles leased 26,917 30,917 30,087 35,520 38,690

Forward-looking Statements. Certain matters discussed in this report, excluding historical information, include forward-looking statements. Although Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. believes such forward-

looking st: are based onr

provided under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. For more detail, see page 2.

no assurance can be given that each statement about the future will be realized. Such statements are made in reliance on the "safe harbor" protections
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Gary L. Paxton Thomas P. Capo

TOOUR STOCKHOLDERS

Value Every Time. These three simple words capture the heart and soul of Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, inc. Officially adopted as our mission statement, value every
fime links this Company with its customers, employees and stockholders. It is the key element of our growth strategy and it is what has driven us to deliver excellent results.
Combining strong revenue growth, an efficient business mode! and exceptional customer service yields value and a winning formula.

Our new mission statement reflects the Dolfar Thrifty attitude that enabled us to achieve significant results during 2003, Here are a few of the more significant accomplishments:
* Positioned - The Company initiated the transition of the Thrifty operating model in the U.S. from being franchised in major markets to corporately operated,

* Driven - We successfully implemented the new operating model and the supporting organizational structure which allows us to operate as a single company while
continuing to grow both of our two strong brands, providing increased efficiencies and maximizing results,

 Growing - During 2003, we acquired franchise operations in 22 key U.S. and Canadian markets and opened six U.S. greenfield locations adding approximatefy 15,000 vehicles,
on an annualized basis, to our corporate fleet,

* Focused - To facilitate our growth, we invested in improved information technology systems, marketing initiatives and infrastructure,

* Innovative - We developed and implemented a dual franchising program for international, Canadian and smaller U.S. markets,

» Responsive - We initiated a two-year $30 million share buyback program resulting in the purchase of approximately 236,000 shares for $5.8 million before year end,

« Efficient - Our three reservation centers were consolidated into two,

» Cutting Edge - Doltar and Thrifty continued their commanding presence on the Internet representing 54 percent of all reservations, and

» Solid - At year end, our balance sheet remained strong with unrestricted cash increasing to $192 million and stockholders’ equity to $533 mitlion.

These achievements, among many others, required a great deal of time and energy, but our employee teams remained focused on the bigger picture and never fost
sight of our operating goals. Dollar Thrifty's 2003 revenue was a record $1.23 billion - an 8.4 percent increase over 2002. Contributing to our record revenue was growth from
both franchise acquisitions and same store operations based on the strength of our two brands, Dollar and Thrifty. Recognized as leaders in the value segment of the car
rental industry, our two brands are well positioned to maximize growth opportunities as the travel marketplace continues to gravitate toward value suppliers.

This excelfent performance was attained despite the slow recovery of the travel industry and the impact of the Iraq war early in the year. Our employees worked
diligently to ensure that Dollar Thrifty remains the most efficient and best managed car rental business. In fact, their efforts have enabled the Company to be profitable every
year since its initial public offering in 1997. While our employees embraced change during 2003, they stayed on a relentless course in pressing for efficiencies and growth to
strengthen the Company's bottom line.

Our $19.8 million net income, or $.78 per diluted share, includes a $.52 per share reduction resulting from the change in accounting to implement Emerging Issues
Task Force No. 02-16 "Accounting by a Customer (including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor” ("EITF 02-16"). Excluding the negative impact of
implementing EITF 02-16, net earnings would have been $33.1 million, or $1.30 per diluted share. This new accounting method became effective as a result of an amendment
in Dollar Thrifty's vehicle supply agreement which provides us additional flexibility in managing vehicle purchases. The accounting change does not impact the Company’s
cash flow.

As you are aware, Dollar Thrifty also executed a leadership succession plan and enhanced the Company's corporate governance practices during 2003. Joe Cappy,
former CEQ and Chairman, retired from the Board December 31, after 10 years of great leadership. Dollar Thrifty moved forward adoptinq best practices in corporate
governance by separating the Chief Executive Officer position from that of Chairman of the Board. The new management structure is in place and, along with other
senior management changes, we are organized for future success.

Ed Hogan, another Board member, also retired from service during the year. Ed's thorough knowledge of the travel industry was invaluable to Dollar Thrifty.

Doltar Thrifty's 2003 accomplishments give us a great platform for 2004. The Company's balance sheet and liquidity position are strong and provide financial flexibility
to continue the aggressive execution of our growth strategy. We are innovative and agile. Our mission is something we take seriously, and it underscores Doflar Thrifty's
commitment to deliver value to every customer, employee and stockholder, every time. Our operating strategy consisting of: maximizing internal and external growth
opportunities; maintaining our low-cost provider position; and initiating exceptional service satisfaction, while remaining focused on results, ensures our success. We are
on course to take Dollar Thrifty to the next fevel, adding value every time.

Y (A

Gary L. Paxton Thomas P. Capo Tulsa, Oklahoma
President and Chairman of the Board March 17, 2004
Chief Executive Officer
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003
OR
[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d} OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 1-13647

DOLLAR THRIFTY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charcer)

Delaware 73-1356520
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

5330 East 31st Street, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135

(Address of principal executive offices and zip code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (918) 660-7700

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class: Name of each exchange on which registered:

Common Stock, $.01 par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12{g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),

and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days: Yes X No__

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation $-K is not contained herein, and will not

be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of

this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K: [X ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act): Yes X No__

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2003,
the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, based on the closing price of the stock on the
New York Stock Exchange on such date was $451,105,059.

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant’s Common Stock as of February 27, 2004 was 25,253,410.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 21, 2004, are incorporated by
reference in Parts 1T and III.
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Factors Affecting Forward-Looking Statements.

Some of the statements contained herein under “Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation” may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Although
Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. believes such forward-looking statements are based upon reasonable assumptions, such statements are
not guarantees of future performance and certain factors could cause results to differ materially from current expectations. These factors
include: price and product competition; economic and competitive conditions in markets and countries where our companies’ customers
reside and where our companies and their franchisees operate; airline travel patterns; changes in capital availability or cost; costs and other
terms related to the acquisition and disposition of automobiles; costs of conducting business and changes in structure or operations; and
certain regulatory and environmental matters. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties, among others, materialize, actual results
could vary from those estimated, anticipated or projected. Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. undertakes no obligation ro update or
revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumprtions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating
results over time.
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PART |

Item 1. Business

Company Overview

GEeNERAL. Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“DTG”), owns DTG Operations, Inc. (‘DTG
Operations”), Dollar Rent A Car, Inc. and Thrifty, Inc. Thrifty, Inc. owns Thrifty Rent-A-Car System, Inc. and Thrifty Car Sales, Inc.
(“Thrifty Car Sales”), which operates a franchised retail used car sales network. Thrifty Rent-A-Car System, Inc. owns Dollar Thrifty
Automotive Group Canada Inc. (“DTG Canada”). Effective January 1, 2003, DTG began operating under a new corporate structure
which realigned the prior brand structure to a functional structure, combining the management of operations and administrative
functions for both the Dollar and Thrifty brands. DTG Operations operates company-owned stores under the Dollar brand and the
Thrifty brand, provides vehicle leasing to franchisees and operates reservation centers for both brands. Thrifty Rent-A-Car System, Inc.
and Dollar Rent A Car, Inc. conduct franchising activities and sales and marketing activities for their respective brands. The Company
has two additional subsidiaries, Rental Car Finance Corp. and Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., which are special purpose financing
entities and have been appropriately consolidated in the financial statements of the Company. Dollar Rent A Car, Inc., the Dollar brand
and DTG Operations operating under the Dollar brand are individually and collectively referred to hereafter as “Dollar”. Thirifty, Inc.,
Thrifty Rent-A-Car System, Inc., Thrifty Car Sales, the Thrifty brand and DTG Operations operating under the Thrifty brand are indi-
vidually and collectively referred to hereafter as “Thrifty”. DTG, Dollar and Thrifty and each of their subsidiaries are individually or
collectively referred to herein as the “Company”, as the context may require. Dollar and Thrifty and their respective independent fran-
chisees operate the Dollar and Thrifty vehicle rental systems. The Dollar and Thrifty brands represent a value-priced rental vehicle gen-
erally appealing to leisure customers, including foreign tourists, and to small businesses and independent business

travelers. As of December 31, 2003, Dollar and Thrifty had 823 locations in the United States and Canada of which 310 were
company-owned stores and 513 were locations operated by franchisees. While Dollar and Thrifty have franchisees in countries outside
the United States and Canada, revenues from these franchisees have not been material to results of operations of the Company.

In the United States, Dollar's main focus is operating company-owned stores located in major airports, and it derives substantial
revenues from leisure and tour package rentals. Thrifty focuses on serving both the airport and local markets operating through a
network of company-owned stores and franchisees. Dollar derives a majority of its U.S. revenues from providing rental vehicles and
services directly to rental customers, while Thrifty has historically derived its revenues primarily from franchising fees and services
including vehicle leasing. However, as part of a new strategy, Thrifty is now shifting to operating more company-owned stores by
acquiring franchisee locations in key markets. Dollar and Thrifty incur the costs of operating company-owned stores and their revenues
are directly affected by changes in rental demand and pricing,

The Company is the successor to Pentastar Transportation Group, Inc., which was formed in 1989 to acquire and operate the
rental car subsidiaries of Chrysler Corporation, now known as DaimlerChrysler Corporation (such entity and its subsidiaries and
members of its affiliated group are hereinafter referred to as “DaimlerChrysler”). DTG Operations, formerly known as Dollar Rent A
Car Systems, Inc., was incorporated in 1965. Thrifty Rent-A-Car System, Inc. was incorporated in 1950 and Dollar Rent A Car, Inc.
was incorporated in December 2002. Thrifty, Inc. was incorporated in December 1998.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION. The Company makes available free of charge on or through its Internet web site its annual report
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to such reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after such material has
been electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The Company’s Internet address is
htep:/fwww.dtag.com. The SEC also maintains a web site that contains all of the Company’s filings at hrep://www.sec.gov.

The Company has a code of business conduct, which is available on the Company’s web site under the heading, “About DTG”.
The Company’s Board of Directors has adopted a corporate governance policy and committee charters, which are updated periodically
and can be found on the Company’s web site under the heading, “Corporate Governance”. A copy of the code of business conduct, the
corporate governance policy and the charters are available upon request to the Company’s headquarters as listed on the front of this
Form 10-K, attention “Investor Relations” department.

industry Overview

The U.S. daily vehicle renta! industry has two principal markets: the airport market and the local market. Vehicle rental companies that
focus on the airport market rent primarily to business and leisure travelers. Vehicle rentals from airport locations account for the largest
portion of vehicle rentals in the United States. Companies focusing on the local market rent primarily to persons who need a vehicle
periodically for personal or business use or who require a temporary replacement vehicle. Rental companies also sell used vehicles and
ancillary products such as refueling services and loss damage waivers to vehicle renters.
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Vehicle rental companies typically incur substantial debt to finance their rental fleets. They also typically acquire a majority of
their fleets under manufacturer residual value programs that repurchase or guarantee the resale value of Program Vehicles (herein after
defined) at particular times in the future. This allows a rental company to determine in advance this important element of its cost
structure. The Program Vehicles and the related obligations of the manufacturers are used as collateral for fleet financing.

The rental car industry has consolidated ownership of the top eight brands which are now owned by just five companies.
Enterprise is privately held, Hertz is a subsidiary of Ford, Budget and Avis are operating subsidiaries of Cendant Corporation, Dollar
and Thrifty are operating subsidiaries of the Company, and Alamo and National were purchased by Vanguard Car Rental USA, Inc., an
affiliate of Cerberus Capiral Management, L.P, a private investment group, from ANC Rental Corporation out of bankruptey in 2003.

Prior to 2001, the car rental industry had experienced steady growth over the last decade driven by increased leisure and business
airline passenger traffic and additional capacity in the hotel industry. During 2001, however, the travel industry suffered from the effects
of an economic recession as well as the terrorist attacks of September 11. In the aftermath of September 11, airline passenger traffic
dropped significantly and car rental companies reduced their flect size in response to lower levels of demand. In 2003, airline passenger
enplanements were down approximately 14% from 2000 peak levels. Car rental demand improved in the second half of 2003 as the
economy picked up. Car rental pricing continued to be weak in 2003, but by the fourth quarter pricing was favorable compared to the
prior year. The future growth of the car rental industry will be determined by general economic conditions and the level of leisure and
business travel.

Seasonality

The Company’s business is subject to seasonal variations in customer demand, with the summer vacation period representing the peak
season for vehicle rentals. This general seasonal variation in demand, along with more localized changes in demand, causes the
Company to vary its fleet size over the course of the year. In 2003, the Company’s average monthly fleet size ranged from a low of
approximately 85,000 vehicles in the first quarter to a high of approximately 131,000 vehicles in the third quarter.

The Company

The Company has two value rental car brands, Dollar and Thrifty, with a strategy to operate company-owned stores in the top 75 air-
port markets and in key leisure destinations in the United States. In the United States, the Dollar and Thrifty brands remain separate,
but operate under a single management structure and share vehicles, back-office employees and facilities, where possible. The Company
also operates company-owned stores in the eight largest airports in Canada under its subsidiary, DTG Canada. In Canada, the compa-
ny-owned stores are primarily co-branded.

The Company also offers franchise opportunities in smaller markets in the United States and Canada and in all markets interna-
tionally so that franchisees can operate under the Dollar or Thrifty trademarks or a more recent opportunity to dual franchise and oper-
ate both brands in one market.

SUMMARY OPERATING DATA OF THE COMPANY

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands)
REVENUES:
Revenue from U.S. and Canada company-owned stores $1,019,476 $ 901,790 $ 824,962
Revenue from U.S. and Canada franchisees 198,039 225,885 220,692
Revenue from international franchisees 4,515 4,192 4,342
Other revenue 5,856 1,327 174
Total revenues $1,227,886 $1,133,194 $1,050,170
As of December 31, 2003 2002 2001
RENTAL LOCATIONS:
U.S. and Canada company-owned stores 310 224 193
U.S. and Canada franchisee locations 513 579 676
FRANCHISEES:
U.S. and Canada 248 243 273
International 99 106 102
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Dcitar anc Thrifty Brands
DOLLAR. Dollars main focus is serving the airport vehicle rental marker, which is composed of business and leisure travelers.
The majority of its locations are on or near airport facilities. At Decernber 31, 2003, Dollar had 102 company-owned and fran-
chised in-terminal locations. Dollar operates primarily through company-owned stores in the United States, and also licenses o
independent franchisees which operate as a part of the Dollar brand system in the United States and abroad. Until 2003, all of its
Canadian and international operations were franchised. In January 2003, Dollar re-acquired its master franchise rights in Canada
and began acquiring franchisees in the eight largest airport markets of Calgary, Winnipeg, Ottawa, Toronto, Montreal, Halifax,
Edmonton and Vancouver. Dollar successfully completed the acquisition of all franchisees in these top markets by January 2004,
when it purchased the franchise operation in Vancouver.

As of December 31, 2003, Dollar’s vehicle rental system included 314 locations in the United States and Canada, consisting

of 169 company-owned stores and 145 franchisee locations. Dollar’s total rental revenue generated by company-owned stores was
$808 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.

THRIFTY. Thrifty’s main focus historically has been on franchising and franchise support services. As part of a new strategy,
Thrifty is shifting to operating more company-owned stores by acquiring franchisee locations in key markets. In 2003, Thrifty made
significant progress in acquiring franchised operations and converting them to company-owned locations. Thrifty U.S. company-
owned locations increased to 87 as of December 31, 2003 from 42 at December 31, 2002. Thrifty’s U.S. company-owned stores and
its franchisees derive approximately 73% of their combined rental revenues from the airport market and approximately 27% from
the local market. Thrifty’s approach of serving both the airport and local markets allows many of its franchisees and company-owned
stores to have multiple locations to improve fleet utilization and profic margins by moving vehicles among locations to better address
demand between these markets. As airports have begun to institute fees for vehicle rental companies located outside their properties
or limited these companies’ access to airport travelers, Thrifty’s company-owned stores and its franchisees have been moving to in-
terminal locations. At December 31, 2003, Thrifty had 94 company-owned and franchised in-terminal locations.

As of December 31, 2003, Thrifty’s vehicle rental system included 509 rental locations in the United States and Canada, con-
sisting of 368 franchisee locations and 141 company-owned stores. Thrifty’s total rental revenue generated by company-owned stores
was $206 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.

J.S. Corporate Opnerations

In 2003, the Company implemented a new operating model for U.S. Dollar and Thrifty company-owned stores. This operating
model includes maintaining separate airport counters, bussing, reservations, marketing and all other customer contact activities,
while using a single management team for both brands. In addition, this operating model includes sharing vehicles, back-office
employees and service facilities, where possible. The Company believes this operating model will allow it to maximize the revenue
available from each brand while achieving a cost structure that approaches that of operating a single brand.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company operates the Dollar brand in 53 and the Thrifty brand in 29 of the top 75 airport
markets in the United States and operates both brands in 26 of these top 75 markets. During 2003, the Company added Thrifty in
21 and Dollar in ewo top 75 airport markets by acquiring franchisee locations or opening greenfield locations.

FRANCHISEE ACQUISITION PROGRAM. The Company is pursuing opportunities to acquire both Dollar and Thrifty franchise
operations in the top 75 airport markets and other key leisure markets. Historically, Thrifty had established company-owned stores
only upon the financial failure of a franchisee. Thrifty is now shifting to operating more company-owned stores by acquiring fran-
chisee locations in key markets. In 2003, Thrifty implemented a strategy to transition from a franchise operation to a corporate
operation in key U.S. markets.

During 2003, the Company acquired the Thrifty franchise operations in 14 key U.S. markets in Hawaii, including
Honolulu and Maui, Manchester, Las Vegas, Memphis, Detroit, Cleveland, Atlanta, Miami, Ft. Lauderdale, West Palm Beach,
Houston, Hartford and Ontario, California. Dollar and Thrifty generally have the right of first refusal on the sale of a franchised
operation.
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Tour RENTALS. Vehicle rentals by customers of foreign and U.S. tour operators generated approximately 19% of the Company’s
rental revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003. These rentals are usually part of tour packages that also include air travel and
hotel accommodations. Rentals to tour customers have certain advantages. Tour customers tend to reserve vehicles earlier than other
customers, rent them for longer periods and cancel reservations less frequently. The Company has significant relationships with foreign
and domestic tour operators that resulted in $189 million in rental revenue during the year ended December 31, 2003.

Dollar is the exclusive U.S. vehicle rental company for all five of its largest tour operator accounts. The agreements for these five
accounts expire from December 15, 2004 to April 30, 2009. No single tour operator account generated in excess of 3% of the
Company’s 2003 revenues.

OTHER. Dollar and Thrifty reduce costs through bulk purchasing, apply performance benchmarks and develop and implement best
practice management techniques nationwide. Its company-owned store network also allows Dollar and Thrifty to offer customers
one-way rentals in most markets.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had vehicle rental concessions for company-owned stores at 106 airports in the United
States. Its payments for these concessions are usually based upon a specified percentage of airport-generated revenue, subject to a
minimum annual fee, and typically include fixed rent for terminal counters or other leased properties and facilities.

Supplemental Equipment and Optional Products. Dollar and Thrifty rent ski racks, baby seats and other supplemental equipment and,
subject to availability and applicable local law, make available loss damage waivers and insurance products related to the vehicle rental.

SuMMARY OF U.S. CORPORATE OPERATIONS DATA

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001

(In Thousands)

RENTAL REVENUES:

Dollar $ 804,700 $ 780,760 $ 756,644
Thrifty 157,006 76,884 28,884
Total rental revenues $ 961,706 $ 857,644 $ 785,528
As of December 31, 2003 2002 2001
RENTAL LOCATIONS:
Dollar 142 138 134
Thrifty 87 42 17

Total rental locations 229 180 151

CaNADIAN OPERATIONS. The Company operates in Canada through DTG Canada. Thrifty has historically had a strong corpo-
rate presence in Canada, and, during 2003, Dollar acquired its master franchise rights in Canada and began re-acquiring its franchisee
locations in the eight largest airport markets in Canada. The Company operates corporate stores in all eight of the largest airport mar-
kets in Canada, which includes Calgary, Winnipeg, Ottawa, Toronto, Montreal, Halifax, Edmonton and Vancouver. The majority of
the markets are operated under the Company’s co-branding strategy in Canada where both the Dollar and Thrifty brands are represent-
ed at one shared location. These operations are important fo maintaining a national airport presence in Canada, where DTG Canada
has significant airport concessions and lease commitments.”

FRANCHISING.
Dollar — Unired States and Canada. Dollar sells its U.S. franchises on an exclusive basis for specific geographic areas, generally outside
the top 75 airport markets. Most franchisees are located at or near airports that generate a lower volume of vehicle rentals than the air-
ports served by Dollar’s company-owned stores.
In Canada, Dollar acquired the master franchise rights in 2003 and sells franchises in markets outside the top eight airport markets.
A new opportunity has been introduced in smaller U.S. and Canadian markets. The Company is offering franchisees the oppor-
tunity to dual franchise. That is, one franchisee can operate both the Dollar and the Thrifty brand, thus, allowing them to drive more
business in their market while leveraging fixed costs.
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Dollar licenses its franchisees to use the Dollar brand service marks in the vehicle rental and leasing and parking businesses.
Franchisees pay Dollar an initial franchise fee generally based on the population, number of airline passengers, total airport vehicle
rental revenues and the level of any other vehicle rental activity in the franchised territory, as well as other facrors.

System Fees. In addition to an initial franchise fee, each U.S. franchisee is generally required to pay Dollar a system fee equal to
89% of airport rental revenue and 6% for suburban operations.

Franchisee Services and Products. Dollar makes insurance coverage available to its franchisees and provides them with training
and operational assistance, site selection guidance, vehicle leasing programs, vehicle damage recovery and claims management advice,
sales assistance and image and standards guidance. Dollar also provides franchisees with fleet planning and customer satisfaction pro-
grams and sells them certain Dollar-branded supplies. In addition, Dollar offers its franchisees rental rate management analysis, central-
ized corporate account and tour billing and travel agent commission payments. Dollar franchisees pay Dollar a fee for cach reservation
made through Dollar’s worldwide reservation system.

Thiifty — Unired States and Canada. Thrifty sells its U.S. franchises on an exclusive basis for specific geographic areas, generally outside
the top 75 U.S. airport markets. Historically, Thrifty sold franchises more broadly; however, in 2003, Thrifty implemented a strategy to
operate the top 75 U.S. markets as company-owned locations. In Canada, Thrifty sells franchises in markets outside the top eight
Canadian airport markets.

A new opportunity has been introduced in smaller U.S. and Canadian markets. The Company is offering franchisees the oppor-
tunity to dual franchise, operating both the Thrifty and Dollar brand.

Thrifty licenses its franchisees to use the Thrifty brand service marks in the vehicle rental and leasing and parking businesses.
Franchisees pay Thrifty an initial franchise fee generally based on the population, number of airline passengers, total airport vehicle
rental revenues and the level of any other vehicle rental activity in the franchised territory, as well as other factors. Thrifty offers its
franchisees a full line of products and services not easily or cost effectively available from other sources. Thrifty works closely with its
franchisees in formulating and implementing marketing and operating strategies.

System Fees and Advertising Fees. In addition to the initial franchise fee, Thrifty’s U.S. franchisees pay Thrifty an administra-
tive fee, which is generally 3.0% of base rental revenue, excluding ancillary products. U.S. franchisees also pay an advertising fee ranging
from 2.5% to 5.0% of base rental revenue to a separate advertising fund managed jointly by franchisees and Thrifty management.

For 2003, Thrifty's five largest U.S. franchisees generated less than 5% of the Company’s total revenue in the form of system,
fleet leasing, reservation and other fees. Over the past five years, Thrifty’s franchisee turnover has averaged approximately 12% per year,
with an average of 19 terminations and 16 new sales (including new territories added to existing franchise agreements) per year.

Franchisee Services and Products. Thrifty provides its U.S. and Canadian franchisees with a full range of products and
services, including vehicle leasing, insurance programs, reservations, site selection, computer systems, marketing programs and
assistance, supplies, image and standards and training.

Canadian Franchisees. A new program has been introduced in Canada allowing Canadian franchisees the opportunity to also
acquire the Dollar brand and operate locations on a co-brand basis. All Canadian franchisees whether operating a single-brand or
co-brand location pay a monthly fee generally equal to 8% of rental revenue.

Stuaraary of U.S. Axb Caxana FRANCHISE OPERATIONS DATA

As oszrember 31, 2003 2002 2001
FRANCHISEE LOCATIONS:
Dollar 145 129 135
Thrifry 368 450 541
Total franchisee locations 513 579 676
As of December 31, 2003 2002 2001
FRANCHISEES:
Dollar 78 56 61
Thrifty 170 187 212
Tortal franchisees 248 243 273

International. Dollar and Thrifty offer master franchises outside the United States and Canada, generally on a countrywide basis. Each
master franchise is permitted to operate wichin their franchised territory directly or through subfranchisees. At December 31, 2003,
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Dollar had franchised locations in 24 countries and Thrifty had franchised locations in 60 countries outside the United States and Canada.
These locations are in Latin America, Europe, the Middle East, and the Asia-Pacific regions. Beginning in 2003, the Company is offering
franchisees the opportunity to license the rights to operate both the Dollar and Thrifty brands in certain markets on a dual franchise or
co-brand basis. Revenue generated by the Company from franchised operations outside the United States and Canada totaled $4.5 million
in 2003.

THRIFTY CAR SaLES. In December 1998, Thrifty Car Sales was formed to operate its new franchise system, “Thrifty Car Sales,”
which sells primarily late model, low mileage used vehicles. Thrifty Car Sales provides an opportunity for both independent and manu-
facturer franchised dealers to enhance or expand their used car operations under a well-recognized national brand name. In addition to
the use of the brand name, dealers have access to a variety of products and services offered by Thrifty Car Sales. These products and
services include operational and marketing support, vehicle supply services, customized retail and wholesale financing programs as well
as national accounts and supplies programs. As of December 31, 2003, Thrifty Car Sales had 53 franchise locations in operation.

RESERVATIONS. The Internet is an important source of reservations for the Company. For the year ended December 31, 2003,
approximately 52% of Dollar’s total non-tour reservations and 55% of Thrifty’s total reservations came through the Internet. Dollar’s
Internet web site (dollar.com) provided approximately 25% of total non-tour reservations for Dollar and Thrifty’s web site (thrifty.com)
provided approximately 27% of total reservations for Thrifty. The Company has continuously staffed reservation facilities for Dollar
and Thrifty at its headquarters in Tulsa, Oklahoma, and at its facility in Tahlequah, Oklahoma. Dollar and Thrifty reservation systems
are linked to all major airline reservation systems and through such systems to travel agencies in the United States, Canada and abroad.

Marketing

Dorvar. Dollar positions itself as a premier value car rental company in the travel industry, providing on airport convenience with
low rates on quality vehicles. Customers who rent from Dollar are cost conscious leisure, tour and business travelers who want to save
money on car rentals without compromising fundamental car rental services. Dollar implements this strategy through national advertis-
ing, strategic marketing partnerships and enhancing distribution channels.

Advertising and Promotion. Dollar employs national advertising primarily in newspapers. Dollar has shifted its traditional media mix of
print and network/cable television to its current emphasis on Internet advertising, where it has made significant investments. In all of its
advertising, Dollar promotes dollar.com, its award winning web site, to encourage travelers to book reservations with Dollar through
this low cost channel. Dollar encourages franchisees, as well as local management of company-owned stores, to develop local market
relationships and rerail sales initiatives that coordinate with Dollar’s national advertising programs.

Dollar has made filings under the intellectual property laws of jurisdictions in which it or its franchisees operate, including the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, to protect the names, logos and designs identified with Dollar. These marks are important for
customer awareness and selection of Dollar for vehicle rental.

Strategic Marketing Efforss. During 2003, the volume of reservations Dollar received through its dollar.com web site and other Internet
web sites totaled approximately 52% of its total non-tour reservations. Dollar has made significant investments in dollar.com and has
plans to continually enhance the web site to best meet its customers’ needs. Additionally, Dollar’s innovative use of direct-connect
technology with the Southwest Airlines site, southwest.com, opened up another new booking channel in 2001, and it has continued to
grow through 2003.

Approximately 19% of Dollar’s non-tour reservations are booked through travel agencies utilizing the major aitline global
distribution systems. Major travel chains and consortia operate under preferred supplier agreements with Dollar, and are supported by
the Dollar sales department. Under its preferred supplier agreements, Dollar provides these travel agency accounts guaranteed commis-
sion levels and overrides/marketing funds in return for promoting Dollar and giving Dollar a priority in their reservation systems. In
general, these agreements are not exclusive to Dollar, and many travel agency accounts have similar arrangements with other vehicle
rental companies. Dollar also maintains strong relations with many significant overseas tour operators who specialize in inbound tour
packages to the United States. Dollar has also developed strategic marketing partnerships and frequent flyer programs.

THRIFTY. Thrifty positions itself as an industry leader in delivering value for vehicle rental to value-conscious consumers. In the

United States, it implements this strategy primarily through national advertising, strategic marketing partnerships and enhancing
distribution channels. In addition, marketing assistance is provided to U.S. franchisees in local advertising, promotion and sales.
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Aduvertising and Promotion. Thrifty employs national advertising on U.S. broadcast and cable television networks and in newspapers and
travel industry and airline magazines, as well as new media advertising via the Internet. Thrifty also sponsors sports and other events to
increase national exposure and promote local Thrifty operations. In the United States, Thrifty's national advertising and marketing expenses
are paid out of an advertising fund managed by a national advertising committee consisting of representatives of Thrifty franchisees and
certain members of Thrifty management. U.S. franchisees and company-owned stores contribute 5% of their base rental revenue from
airport operations and 2.5% of their base rental revenue from local operations to the advertising fund.

Thrifty has made filings under the intellectual property laws of jurisdictions in which it or its franchisees operate, including the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office, to protect the names, logos and designs identified with Thrifty. These marks are important for customer
awareness and selection of Thrifty for vehicle rental.

Strategic Marketing Efforss. During 2003, the volume of reservations Thrifty received through its thrifty.com web site and other Internet
travel sites totaled approximarely 55% of its total reservations. Thrifty continues to invest in its thrifty.com web site and recently introduced
a new and easier means of booking on thrifty.com.

Thrifty enjoys a strong relationship with the travel agency community, which is highlighted by its longstanding support of ASTA
{American Society of Travel Agents) and through its preferred supplier arrangements. Under its preferred supplier arrangements, Thrifty
provides these travel agency groups additional commissions or lower prices in return for their featuring Thrifty in their advertising or giving
Thrifty a priority in their reservation systems. In general, these arrangements are not exclusive to Thrifty, and many travel agency groups have
similar arrangements with other vehicle rental companies. Thrifty continues to be the exclusive car rental supplier in Radisson’s “Look to Book”
program. Thrifty has also developed strategic partnerships with most U.S. airlines through participation in their frequent flyer programs.

In 2003, the Thrifty relationship with Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Wal-Mart”) expanded to include a test of rental counters inside a
limited number of Wal-Mart stores. Thrifty’s relationship with Wal-Mart includes an exclusive marketing and sales agreement and has result-
ed in Thrifty being named co-primary supplier of rental cars for Wal-Mart’s corporate travel and an exclusive marketing and sales agreement
with Wal-Mart.com to provide anytime, anywhere flat rate pricing for Thrifty’s compact and intermediate size rental vehicles. Thrifty is also
the only car rental company approved to accept the Wal-Mart credit card.

CusToMER SERVICE. The Company has programs at its headquarters and in company-owned stores to improve customer service.
These programs involve customer satisfaction training and team-based problem solving, especially as it relates to improving customer
service. The Company’s customer service centers measure customer satisfaction, track service quality trends, respond to customer
inquiries and provide recommendations to senior management and vehicle rental location supervisors. The Company conducts initial
and ongoing training for headquarters, company-owned store and franchisee employees, using professional trainers, performance
coaches and computer-based training programs.

INFORMATION SYSTEMS AND OTHER SERVICES. The Company depends upon a number of core information systems to
operate its business, primarily its counter automation, reservations and revenue management systems. The counter automation system
in company-owned stores processes rental transactions, facilitates the sale of additional products and services and facilitates the monitor-
ing of its fleet and financial assets. In 1998, the Company developed a revenue management system with Manugistics Group, Inc., a
leading supplier of such systems, which is utilized by all company-owned stores. The system is designed to enable the Company to
better determine rental demand based on historical reservation patterns and adjust its rental rates accordingly.

EDS Information Systems, L.L.C. (‘EDS”), a leading global information technology service company, manages and monitors
the Company’s data center network and its daily information processing. The Company’s counter automation, reservations, revenue
management, Internet web sites and fleet processing systems are housed in a secure underground EDS facility in Oklahoma designed
to withstand disasters. Other information systems are supported by Company employees.

U.S. franchisees receiving a certain volume of reservations are required to use an approved automated counter system. In addition
to providing an electronic data link with the Company’s worldwide reservations centers, the automated counter system prints rental
agreements and provides the Company and its franchisees with customer and vehicle inventory information as well as financial and
operating reports.

Insurance, Supplies and National Account Programs. The Company makes available to its franchisees, for a fee, insurance for death
or injury to third parties, property damage and damage to or theft of franchisee vehicles.

The Company makes bulk purchases of items used by its franchisees, which it sells to franchisees at prices that are often lower
than they could obtain on their own. The Company also negotiates national account programs to allow its franchisees to take advantage
of volume discounts for many materials or services used for operations such as tires, glass replacement, long distance telephone service
and overnight mail.

DParking Services. Airport parking operations are a natural complement to vehicle rental operations. The Company encourages its
franchisees that have near-airport locations to add this ancillary business.

page. 9




rieet Acquisition anc Management

VEHICLE SurpLy. For the 2003 model year, DaimlerChrysler vehicles represented approximately 85% of the total U.S. fleet of
DTG Operations. DTG Operations also purchases vehicles from other automotive manufacturers to adjust somewhat the overall
composition and cost of the fleet. The Company expects that for the 2004 model year, DaimlerChrysler vehicles will also represent
approximately 85% of the total U.S. fleet of DTG Operations.

Automotive manufacturers’ residual value programs limit the Company’s residual value risk. Under these programs, the manufac-
turer either guarantees the aggregate depreciated value upon resale of covered vehicles of a given model year, as is generally the case
under DaimlerChrysler’s program, or agrees to repurchase vehicles at specified prices during established repurchase periods. In either
case, the manufacturer’s obligation is subject to certain conditions relating to the vehicle’s age, physical condition and mileage. Vehicles
purchased by vehicle rental companies under these programs are referred to as “Program Vehicles.” Vehicles not purchased under these
programs and for which rental companies therefore bear residual value risk are referred to herein as “Non-Program Vehicles.” The
Company believes that a majority of vehicles owned by other U.S. vehicle rental companies, except for Enterprise, are Program Vehicles.

DaimlerChrysler, the Company’s primary suppliet, sets the terms of its residual value program before the start of each model
year. The terms include monthly depreciation rates, minimum and maximum holding periods and mileages, model mix requirements,
and vehicle condition and other return requirements. The residual value program enables DTG Operations to limit its residual value
risk with respect to Program Vehicles because DaimlerChrysler agrees to reimburse DTG Operations for any difference between the
aggregate gross auction sale price of the Program Vehicles for the particular model year and the vehicles” aggregate predetermined
residual value. Under the program, DTG Operations must sell the Program Vehicles in closed auctions to DaimlerChrysler dealers.
DTG Operations is reimbursed under the program for certain transportation and auction-related costs.

DTG Operations also purchases Non-Program Vehicles, for which it bears the full residual risk because the vehicles are not
covered by any manufacturer’s residual value program. It does so when required by manufacturers in connection with the purchase of
Program Vehicles or when it believes there is an opportunity to lower its fleet costs or to fill model and class niches not available
through residual value programs. DaimlerChrysler, which is the main provider of Non-Program Vehicles to DTG Operations, does not
set any terms or conditions on the resale of Non-Program Vehicles other than requiring minimum holding periods. For the 2003 model
year, approximately 17% of the vehicles acquired by DTG Operations were Non-Program Vehicles.

The Company’s operating results are matetially affected by the depreciation rates and other purchase terms provided under
DaimlerChrysler’s residual value program, as well as any other purchase or promotion incentives DaimlerChrysler provides. The
petcentage of vehicles acquired under DaimlerChrysler and other manufacturers’ residual value programs in the future will depend
upon several factors, including the availabilicy and cost of these programs.

Residual value programs enable Dollar and Thrifty to determine their depreciation expense on Program Vehicles in advance.
Vehicle depreciation is the largest single cost element in the Company’s operations. The percentage of the Company’s vehicle rental
fleets benefiting from residual value programs could decrease if the automotive manufacturers changed the size or terms of these
programs. In that event, the Company would have increased residual value risk that could be material to its results of operations and
could adversely affect its abilicy to finance its vehicles. Second, because it is difficult to predict future vehicle resale values, the Company
may not be able to manage effectively the residual value risk on its Non-Program Vehicles. The residual value of Non-Program Vehicles
depends on such factors as the general level of pricing in the automotive industry for both new and used vehicles. Prices for used
vehicles generally decrease if the automotive manufacturers increase the retail sales incentives they offer on new vehicles. The Company
cannot predict the level of retail sales incentives DaimlerChrysler or the other automotive manufacturers will offer in the future. The
Company has received substantial payments under residual value programs over the past several years. See Note 6 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Dollar and Thrifty entered into U.S. vehicle supply agreements with DaimlerChrysler, which commenced with the 1997 model
year and expired in july 2001. In June 2000, the Company entered into a new vehicle supply agreement with DaimlerChrysler, which
enabled the Company to acquire revenue-earning vehicles beginning with the 2002 model year through the 2006 model year. In
October 2002, the Company finalized a new vehicle supply agreement with DaimlerChrysler, which enables the Company to acquire
vehicles through the 2007 model year. In October 2003, the Company amended its vehicle supply agreement (the “VSA”) with
DaimlerChrysler. This amendment did not impact the economic terms of the agreement, but provided the Company additional
flexibility in managing its vehicle purchases. Under the VSA, DaimlerChrysler has agreed to make specified volumes of
DaimlerChrysler vehicles available for use by company-owned stores or for fleet leasing programs. Dollar and Thrifty will promote
DaimlerChrysler vehicles exclusively in their advertising and other promotional materials and DaimlerChrysler has agreed to make
various promotional payments to the Company. These payments are material to the Company’s results of operations. See Note 6 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The VSA provides that the Company will purchase at least 75% of its vehicles from DaimlerChrysler until a cerain minimum
level is reached, of which 83% will be Program Vehicles and 17% will be Non-Program Vehicles for the 2004 model year. While

DaimlerChrysler has the sole discretion to set the specific terms and conditions of its residual value program for a model year, it has
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agreed in the VSA to offer programs to the Company that, taken as a whole, are competitive with a residual value program Ford or
General Motors makes generally available to domestic vehicle rental companies.

VericLE DisrosiTion. DTG Operations generally holds vehicles in rental service from seven to nine months. The length of
service is determined by taking into account seasonal rental demand and the average monthly mileage accumulation. Most vehicles
must be removed from service before they reach 30,000 miles to avoid significant excess mileage penalties under DaimlerChrysler’s
residual value program. DTG Operations must bear the risk on the resale of Program Vehicles that cannot be returned. DTG
Operations’ efforts to expand the channels for disposition of Non-Program Vehicles have been successful. DTG Operations disposed of
57% of its Non-Program Vehicles through auctions and 43% directly to used car dealers, wholesalers and its franchisees during the year
ended December 31, 2003. Utilizing sales channels other than the auctions avoids transportation costs, interest costs and other fees.

MaINTENANCE. DTG Operations and certain Dollar and Thrifty franchisees may have automotive maintenance centers at airports
and in urban and suburban areas. Many of these facilities are accepted by automotive manufacturers as eligible to perform and receive
reimbursement for warranty repairs. Collision damage repairs are generally performed by independent contractors. Dollar’s and Thrifty’s
franchisees are responsible for the maintenance of their fleet vehicles.

FLEET LEASING PROGRAMS. DTG Operations makes fleet leasing programs available to Dollar and Thrifty U.S. franchisees for
each new model year. The terms of its fleet leasing programs generally mirror the requirements of various manufacturers’ residual value
programs with respect to model mix, order and delivery, vehicle maintenance and returns, but also include Non-Program Vehicles.
Dollar and Thrifty monitor the creditworthiness and operating performance of franchisees participating in the fleet leasing programs
and periodically audit franchisees’ leased fleets. For the year ended December 31, 2003, approximately 12% of the Company'’s total
revenue was derived from vehicle leasing programs. As the Company continues to implement its corporate strategy of acquiring
franchise operations and converting them to corporate operations, leasing revenue will continue to decline.

DTG Operations sets lease rates after considering depreciation rates for Program Vehicles, estimated Non-Program Vehicle
depreciation rates, interest costs, model mix, administrative costs and market conditions. Average monthly lease rates vary depending on
vehicle model, and the average lease period is between seven and nine months. Although DTG Operations leases both Non-Program
Vehicles as well as Program Vehicles to Dollar and Thrifty franchisees, these fleet leasing programs eliminate the residual value risk for
their franchisees. Franchisees may, however, elect to assume some residual value risk on cerrain Non-Program Vehicles they lease in
exchange for a lower lease rate.

U.S. FLEET DaTA

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
DTG:
Average number of vehicles leased to franchisees 28,162 33,849 31,412
Average number of vehicles in combined fleets of franchisees 53,410 55,703 57,862
Average number of vehicles in combined fleets of company-owned stores 75,684 65,331 65,029
Total 129,094 121,034 122,891

Competition

There is intense competition in the vehicle rental industry on the basis of price, service levels, vehicle quality, vehicle availabilicy and the
convenience and condition of rental locations. Dollar operates mainly in the U.S. airport market, although compared to its competitors
it relies more heavily on leisure, tour and small business customers. Dollar’s franchisees have a similar customer profile. In any given
location, Dollar may compete with national, regional and local vehicle rental companies, many of which have greater financial resources
than the Company. Dollar’s principal competitors for business and leisure travelers are Alamo, Avis, Budget, Hertz, National,
Enterprise and Thrifty. Dollar competes primarily on the basis of price and customer service.

Thrifty’s U.S. franchisees and company-owned stores generally compete for cost-conscious consumers with Alamo, Avis, Budget,
Dollar, Hertz, Enterprise and National. Enterprise, Hertz, Avis and Budget as well as local and regional rental companies are major
competitors in the local market. They compete on the basis of price, location, service and well-established customer relationships. Most
Thrifty franchisees compete in the local marker for retail general use business rather than insurance replacement rentals.

The Canadian vehicle rental markets are also intensely competitive. The vast majority of the Canadian market is operated either

directly or through franchisees of the major U.S. vehicle rental companies, including Budget, Alamo, Avis, Hertz, Enterprise and
National, as well as Dollar and Thrifty.
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The Company is subject to third-party bodily injury liability and property damage claims resulting from accidents involving its rental
vehicles. In 2003 and 2002, the Company retained the risk of loss in various amounts up to $2 million and $1 million, respectively, on
a per occurrence basis for public liability and property damage claims. The Company maintains insurance coverages at certain amounts
in excess of this retained risk. In 2001, the majority of the Company’s operations had first dollar coverage from insurance carriers,
subject to certain policy limits, for these claims. Prior to this insurance coverage, the Company was self-insured or had policy
deductibles up to certain limits. Additionally, in 2003, the Company began retaining the risk of loss on a portion of the supplemental
liability insurance (“SLI”) policies sold to vehicle rental customers.

The Company retains the risk of loss for general and garage liability insurance coverage in various amounts up to $2 million
and maintains insurance at certain amounts in excess of $2 million. The Company retains the risk of loss for any catastrophic and
comprehensive damage to its vehicles. In addition, the Company carries workers' compensation coverage with retentions in various
amounts up to $250,000. The Company also carries excess liability and directors' and officers' liability insurance coverage.

Provisions for bodily injury liability and property damage liability on self-insured claims are made by charges to expense based
upon periodic evaluations by an independent actuary of estimared ultimate liabilities on reported and unreported claims. As of
December 31, 2003, the Company'’s reserve for public liability and property damage claims was approximately $56.3 million. The
Company’s obligations to pay these losses and indemnify the insurance carriers are collateralized by surety bonds and letters of credit.
As of December 31, 2003, these letters of credit and surety bonds totaled approximately $59.6 million and $17.9 million, respectively.

The Company also maintains various surety bonds to secure performance under airport concession agreements and other
obligations. As of December 31, 2003, the total amount of these bonds was approximately $24.4 million.

Reguigtion
Loss DAMAGE WAIVERS AND ANCILLARY INSURANCE. Loss damage waivers relieve customers from financial responsibility
for vehicle damage. Legislation affecting the sale of loss damage waivers has been adopted in 26 states. These laws either require disclosure
to customers that loss damage waivers may not be necessary, limit customer liability to specified amounts, limit the ability of vehicle
rental companies to offer loss damage waivers for sale or cap the amounts that may be charged for loss damage waivers. Adoption of
national or additional state legislation affecting or limiting the sale, or capping the rates, of loss damage waivers could result in the loss of
this revenue and additional limitations on potential customer liability could increase costs to Dollar, Thrifty and their franchisees.
Legislation was passed in New York state removing many of the limitations on the car rental industry’s ability to sell loss damage waivers
in New York effective February 24, 2003.

Dollar, Thrifty and other vehicle rental companies offer customers SLI in connection with vehicle rentals. In 1997, the State of
Texas determined that car rental companies cannot sell SLI without licensing and product approval. Some other states concluded that the
selling of SLI required an insurance license while other states were unclear on the issue. During the fourth quarter of 1999, the Financial
Services Reform Bill was passed by Congress to address this issue. The legislation created a federal presumption for a three-year period
that car rental companies are not required to have a state insurance license to sell certain insurance products, unless state law specifically
requires such a license. This three-year period expired in the fall of 2002; however, most states have enacted legislation or other adminis-
trative action addressing this issue. Car rental companies continue to work for legislative or administrative action in the few remaining
states that have not yet addressed this issue.

FRANCHISING REGULATION. As franchisors, Dollar and Thrifty are subject to federal, state and foreign laws regulating various
aspects of franchise operations and sales. These laws impose registration and disclosure requirements on franchisors in the offer and sale
of franchises and, in certain states, also apply substantive standards to the relationship between the franchisor and the franchisee, includ-
ing those pertaining to default, termination and nonrenewal of franchises.

OTHER MATTERS. Certain states currently make vehicle owners (including vehicle rental companies) vicariously liable for the
actions of any person lawfully driving an owned vehicle, regardless of fault. Some of these states, primarily New York, do not limit this
liability. Vehicle rental companies are also subject to various federal, state and local consumer protection laws and regulations including
those relating to advertising and disclosure of charges to customers.

Dollar and Thrifty are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to taxing and licensing of vehicles, franchise
sales, franchise relationships, vehicle liability, used vehicle sales, insurance, telecommunications, vehicle rental transactions and labor
matters. The Company believes that Dollar's and Thrifty’s practices and procedures are in substantial compliance with federal, state and
local laws and is not aware of any material expenditures necessary to meet legal or regulatory requirements. Nevertheless, considering the
nature and scope of Dollar’s and Thrifty’s businesses, it is possible that regulatory compliance problems could be encountered in the future.
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The principal environmental regulatory requirements applicable to Dollar and Thrifty operations relate to the ownership, storage or use
of petroleum products such as gasoline, diesel fuel and new and used motor oil; the treatment or discharge of waste waters; the operation
of automotive body shops; and the generation, storage, transportation and off-site treatment or disposal of waste materials. Dollar and
Thrifty own 12 and lease 97 locations where petroleum products are stored in underground or above-ground tanks. For owned and leased
properties, Dollar and Thrifty have programs designed to maintain compliance with applicable technical and operational requirements,
including leak detection testing of underground storage tanks, and to provide financial assurance for remediation of spills or releases.

The historical and current uses of the Dollar and Thrifty facilities may have resulted in spills or releases of various hazardous
materials or wastes or petroleum products (“Hazardous Substances™) that now, or in the future, could require remediation. The
Company also may be subject to requirements related to remediation of Hazardous Substances that have been released into the enviren-
ment at properties they own or operate, or owned or operated in the past, or at properties to which they send, or have sent, Hazardous
Substances for treatment or disposal. Such remediation requirements generally are imposed without regard to fault, and liability for any
required environmental remediation can be substantial.

Dollar and Thrifty may be eligible for reimbursement or payment of remediation costs associated with releases from registered
underground storage tanks in U.S. states that have established funds to assist in the payment of such remediation costs. Subject to
certain deductibles, the availability of funds, the compliance status of the tanks and the narture of the release, these tank funds may be
available to Dollar and Thrifry for use in remediating releases from their tank systems.

At certain facilities, Dollar and Thrifty presently are investigating or remediating soil or groundwater contamination. Based on
currently available information, the Company does not believe that the costs associated with environmental investigation or remediation
will be material. However, additional contamination could be identified or occur in the future.

The use of automobiles and other vehicles is subject to various governmental requirements designed to limit environmental
damage, including that caused by emissions and noise. Generally, these requirements are met by the manufacturer excepr, on occasion,
equipment failure requiring repair by the Company.

Environmental legislation and regulations and related administrative policies have changed rapidly in recent years. There is a risk
that governmental environmental requirements, or enforcement thereof, may become more stringent in the future and that the
Company may be subject to legal proceedings brought by government agencies or private parties with respect to environmental matters.
In addition, with respect to cleanup of contamination, additional locations at which wastes generated by the Company may have been
released or disposed, and of which the Company is currently unaware, may in the future become the subject of cleanup for which the
Company may be liable, in whole or part. Accordingly, while the Company believes that it is in substantial compliance with applicable
requirements of environmental laws, there can be no assurance that the Company’s future environmental liabilities will not be material
to the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations or cash flows.

—maioyees
As of December 31, 2003, the Company employed a total of approximately 7,000 full-time and part-time employees. Approximately

200 of the Company’s employees were subject to collective bargaining agreements as of December 31, 2003. The Company believes its
relationship with its employees is good.

Item 2. Properties

The Company owns its headquarters located at 5330 East 31st Street, Tulsa, Oklahoma. This location is a three building office
complex that houses the headquarters and Tulsa reservation centers for Dollar and Thrifty. These buildings and the related improve-
ments were mortgaged in December 1997 pursuant to a mortgage in favor of Credit Suisse First Boston (“CSFB”), as administrative
agent for a syndicate of banks. The mortgage was executed in connection with the Revolving Credit Facility, as described in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation — Liquidity and Capital Resources”.

In connection with the Revolving Credit Facility, the Company also executed mortgages in favor of CSFB encumbering its real
property located in San Diego, Tampa, Las Vegas, Phoenix, Ft. Lauderdale, Orlando, Dallas, Houston and Salt Lake Ciy.

The Company owns or leases real property used for company-owned stores and office facilities, and in some cases owns real
property that is leased to franchisees or other third parties. As of December 31, 2003, the Company’s company-owned operations were
carried on at 310 locations in the United States and Canada, the majority of which are leased. Dollar and Thrifty each operate company-
owned stores under concession agreements with various governmental authorities charged with the operation of airports. Concession
agreements for airport locations, which are sometimes competitively bid, are important for securing air traveler business.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On November 2, 1994, the City of San Jose, California filed an action in the Superior Court of California, against Chevron,
Dollar and others, seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive damages and injunctive relief. The suit relates to pollution at a site
currently occupied by Dollar and formerly occupied by Chevron. Dollar has partially remediated the affected soil, but not the allegedly
affected ground water. Dollar believes that prior uses of the site resulted in any remaining contamination at the site.

In addition to the foregoing, various legal actions, claims and governmental inquiries and proceedings are pending or may be
instituted or asserted in the future against the Company. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of the individual
litigated matters is not predictable with assurance. It is possible that certain of the actions, claims, inquiries or proceedings, including
the one discussed above, could be decided unfavorably to the Company. Although the amount of liability with respect to these matters
cannot be ascertained, potential liability is not expected to materially affect the consolidated financial position or results of operations of
the Company.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2003.

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the trading symbol “DTG.”
The high and low sales prices for the Common Stock for each quarterly period during 2003 and 2002, were as follows:

2003 First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
High $22.50 $19.70 $25.13 $26.60
Low $15.45 $16.00 $18.79 $22.91
2002

High $21.15 $25.90 $26.47 $22.14
Low $14.62 $20.20 $15.21 $14.66

The 25,253,410 shares of Common Stock outstanding at February 27, 2004 were held by approximately 4,000 registered and
beneficial stockholders of record.

The Company has not paid cash dividends since completion of its initial public offering in December 1997, but may consider
paying cash dividends in the future.

Under the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility, restrictions were imposed by the lenders on the payment of cash dividends and
share repurchases. During the term of such agreement, which expires August 2, 2005, share repurchases and dividends are permitted at
the lesser of specified monetary levels or percentages of cash flow. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operation — Liquidity and Capital Resources”.

Reference is made to the information appearing under the caption “Securicy Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors,
Director Nominees and Executive Officers — Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement
which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated by the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal
year ended December 31, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Seiecied Consolidated Financiai Data of the Company

The selected consolidated financial data was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts):
Revenues:
Vehicle rentals $1,014,121 $ 897,384 $ 821,834 $ 844,668 $ 736,845
Vehicle leasing 144,368 168,792 162,204 198,686 218,614
Fees and services 54,149 56,237 56,057 61,166 57,046
Other 15,248 10,781 10,075 9,850 8,685
Total revenues 1,227,886 1,133,194 1,050,170 1,114,370 1,021,190
Costs and expenses:
Direct vehicle and operating 515,273 416,954 401,417 346,091 311,567
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net 396,497 367,752 354,394 340,448 311,113
Selling, general and administrative 189,575 177,562 169,599 187,711 190,994
Interest expense, net 89,296 93,427 92,365 97,703 95,114
Amortization of goodwill — — 6,178 5,941 5,842
Total costs and expenses 1,190,641 1,055,695 1,023,953 977,894 914,630
Income before income taxes 37,245 77,499 26,217 136,476 106,560
Income tax expense 17,405 30,668 12,380 58,467 46,974
Nert income $ 19,840 $ 46,831 $ 13,837 $ 78,009 $ 59,586
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.81 $ 1.93 $ 0.57 $ 3.23 $ 2.47
Diluted $ 0.78 $ 1.88 $ 0.57 $ 3.18 $ 2.43

BALANCE SHEET DATA (/n Thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 192,006 $ 143,485 $ 37,532 $ 38,493 $ 77,500
Restricted cash and investments $ 336,547 $ 334,849 $ 48,090 $ 30,760 $ 144,671
Revenue-earning vehicles, net $2,136,719 $2,006,644 $1,525,553 $1,522,388 $1,507,692
Total assets $3,412,499 $3,115,477 $2,163,692 $2,100,374 $2,171,653
Total debt $2,442,162 $2,224,303 $1,516,733 $1,424,021 $1,555,609
Stockholders’ equity $ 533,457 $ 499,481 $ 463,321 $ 458,139 $ 379,127

Note: Certain reclassificarions have been made to the prior years’ financial data to conform to the classifications used in 2003.
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U.S. AND CANADA

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

SYSTEM-WIDE DATA:

Rental locations:

Company-owned stores 310 224 193 182 149
Franchisee locations 513 579 676 765 824
Total rental locations 823 803 869 947 973

Average number of vehicles operated
during the period by company-owned
stores and franchisees 136,757 128,968 130,252 134,475 123,814

Peak number of vehicles operated
during the period by company-owned
stores and franchisees 167,755 158,758 159,993 162,515 148,832

COMPANY-OWNED STORES DATA:

Vehicle rental dara:
Average number of vehicles operated 80,302 69,272 68,696 65,702 59,218
Number of rental days 24,654,084 21,056,362 20,640,229 20,347,296 18,155,768
Average revenue per day $ 4113 § 4262 S 3982 $ 41.52 $ 40.58
Monthly average revenue per vehicle $ 1,052 $ 1,080 $ 997 $ 1,071 $ 1,037
Vehicle leasing data:
Average number of vehicles leased 26,917 30,917 30,087 35,520 38,690
Average monthly lease revenue per unit $ 447 $ 455 $ 449 $ 466 $ 471

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Overview

The Company operates two value rental car brands, Dollar and Thrifty. The majority of its customers pick up their vehicles at airport
locations. Both brands are value priced and the Company therefore seeks to be the industry’s low cost provider. Leisure customers rent
vehicles for longer periods than business customers, on average, prov1dmg lower transaction costs. The Company believes its vehicle
utilization is consistently higher than that of its competitors.

Both Dollar and Thrifty operate through a network of company—owned stores and franchisees. The majority of the Company’s
revenue is generated from renting vehicles to customers through company-owned stores, with lesser amounts generated by fees and
leasing revenue from franchisees.

During the early part of 2003, the Company’s revenues and profits were negatively impacted by weak travel conditions leading
up to, during and following the war in Iraq. During the first half of 2003, revenue per day was down about 6% from the prior year and
same store rental day volume was up only slightly. During the third and fourth quarters of 2003 travel began to improve as the economy
began to strengthen. Year over year pricing trends improved during the third and fourth quarters from that experienced during the first
half, with revenue per day down about 2% in the third quarter and up slightly in the fourth quarter compared to 2002. Same store rental
day volume was up 8% in the third quarter and up nearly 14% in the fourth quarter. Airline enplanements, an important driver for
airport rental car demand, were down 2.7% in 2003 versus 2002, however enplanements were down only 1.1% in the fourth quarter.

Prior to 2003, the Company maintained separate organizations for both the Dollar and Thrifty brands. At the beginning of the
year, the Company implemented a single company structure organized around functions. The Company believes this new structure
provides a more efficient operating structure and will facilitate more efficient growth. The Company is working to combine and
improve information technology systems to gain efficiencies and facilitate growth. The Company also closed one of its satellite
reservation centers as a result of this new structure.

The Company is working to transition the Thrifty business model from a franchise model to a corporate operating model,
similar to Dollars. The Company’s long term strategy is to operate both brands as corporate stores in the top 75 U.S. airport markets,
the top eight Canadian airport markets and in key leisure destinations and to operate through franchisees in the smaller markets.
During the year, the Company acquired franchise operations in 22 key U.S. and Canadian markets and opened six U.S. greenfield
locations. During 2003, rental day volume increased by over 11% in company-owned stores as a result of franchisee acquisitions and
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the opening of greenfield locations. The Company expects that the majority of the franchises available for sale can be purchased over
the next two years and funded with cash from operations.

During 2003, the Company also implemented a new operating model for corporate store operations, operating both the Dollar
and Thrifty brands with a single management team, sharing systerns, vehicles, back-office employees and service facilities, where possible.
The Company believes this is a more efficient operating model, which also facilitates the transition of the Thrifty brand from a franchise
model to a corporate model, as franchise operations continue to be acquired.

The Company’s profitability is primarily a function of the volume and pricing of rental transactions, utilization of the vehicles
and the number of vehicles leased to franchisees. Significant changes in the purchase or disposal price of vehicles or interest rates can
also have a significant effect on the Company’s profitability, depending on the ability of the Company to adjust pricing and lease rates
for these changes. The Company’s business requires significant expenditures for vehicles and consequently, requires substantial liquidicy
to finance such expenditures.

The Company expects its ongoing cash flow to exceed cash required to operate the business. Thus, in July 2003, the Company
announced a $30 million share repurchase program to be completed over a two year period. During the third and fourth quarters of
2003 the Company purchased 236,000 shares for $5.8 million.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the percentage of total revenues in the Company’s consolidated statements of income:

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Vehicle rentals 82.6% 79.2% 78.3%
Vehicle leasing 11.8 14.9 15.4
Fees and services 4.4 5.0 5.3
Other 1.2 0.9 1.0
Tortal revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0
Costs and expenses:
Direct vehicle and operating 42.0 36.8 38.2
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net 32.3 325 33.7
Selling, general and administrative 15.4 15.7 16.2
Interest expense, net 7.3 8.2 8.8
Amortization of goodwill — — 0.6
Total costs and expenses 97.0 93.2 97.5
Income before income taxes 3.0 6.8 2.5
Income tax expense 1.4 2.7 1.2
Net income 1.6% 4.1% 1.3%

The Company’s revenues consist of:

*  Vehicle rental revenue generated from renting vehicles to customers through company-owned stores.

*  Vehicle leasing revenue generated from leasing vehicles to franchisees.

+  Fees and services revenue generated from continuing franchise fees and providing services to franchisees.
*  Other revenue generated from miscellaneous sources.

The Company’s expenses consist of:

* Direct vehicle and operating expense relared to the rental of revenue-earning vehicles to customers and the leasing of vehicles to
franchisees.

* Vehicle depreciation and lease charges net of gains and losses on vehicle disposal.

¢ Selling, general and administrative expense, which primarily includes headquarters personnel expenses, advertising and marketing
expenses and administrative expenses.

* Interest expense, net which includes interest expense on vehicle related debr, net of interest earned on restricted cash.
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Year cndec Decemper 31, 2003 Compared

with Year =nded December 31, 2002

OPERATING REsuLTs. The Company had income before income taxes of $37.2 million for 2003 as compared to $77.5 million in
2002. Income before income taxes for 2003 was reduced by $22.1 million due to the implementation of Emerging Issues Task Force

No. 02-16 (“EITF 02-16"). See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

REVENUES
8 Increase / % Increase /

(in millions) 2003 2002 (decrease) (decrease)
Vehicle rentals $ 1,014.1 $ 897.4 $ 1167 13.0 %
Vehicle leasing 144.4 168.8 (24.4) (14.5 %)
Fees and services 54.2 56.2 (2.0) (3.7 %)
Other 15.2 10.8 44 41.4%

Toral revenues $ 1,227.9 $ 11,1332 $ 94.7 8.4 %
Vehicle rental metrics:
Number of rental days 24,654,084 21,056,362 3,597,722 17.1%
Average revenue per day $ 41.13 $ 42.62 $  (1.49) (3.5 %)
Vehicle leasing metrics:
Average number of vehicles leased 26,917 30,917 (4,000) (12.9 %)
Average monthly lease revenue per unit $ 447 $ 455 $ (8) (1.8 %)

Vehicle rental revenue increased 13.0% due to a 17.1% increase in rental days totaling $153.3 million, partially offset by a 3.5%
decrease in revenue per day totaling $36.6 million. Vehicle rental revenue grew by 10.4% from franchisee acquisitions and greenfield
locations and by 2.6% from same store growth.

Vehicle leasing revenue decreased 14.5% due primarily to shifting several locations from franchised operations to corporate
operations in line with the Company’s acquisition stracegy.

EXPENSES
$ Increase / % Increase /
(in millions) 2003 2002 (decrease) (decrease)
Direct vehicle and operating $ 515.3 $ 4170 § 983 23.6%
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net 396.4 367.7 28.7 7.8%
Selling, general and administrative 189.6 177.6 12.0 6.8%
Interest expense, net of interest income 89.3 93.4 (4.1) (4.4 %)
Total expenses $ 1,190.6 $ 1,055.7 $ 1349 12.8%

Direct vehicle and operating expenses increased primarily due to higher transaction levels, resulting primarily from the operation
of additional corporate stores. Personnel related expenses were increased by $21.4 million, commissions by $6.6 million, facilities
expenses by $17.7 million and vehicle related costs by $22.9 million, offset by $3.5 million reduced bad debt expense due to reduced
franchisee revenue and the financial stability of the remaining franchisees. In addition, direct vehicle and operating expenses increased
$28.4 million, resulting from reduced recognition of promotional incentives, of which $26.6 million was due to the Company’s
implementing EITF 02-16 during the fourth quarter of 2003. Direct vehicle and operating expenses were 42.0% of revenue for 2003,
compared to 36.8% of revenue in 2002,

Net vehicle depreciation expense increased $28.7 million, of which $20.4 million is due to a 6.9% increase in depreciable fleet
partially offset by a 1.3% decrease in the average depreciation rate, excluding the impact of EITF 02-16. The disposition of Non-
Program Vehicles resulted in a net loss of $1.9 million in 2003 compared to a gain of $10.2 million in 2002 reflecting the decline in
used car values in 2003. Lease charges for vehicles leased from third parties increased $0.7 million. Vehicle depreciation expense was
lower by $4.5 million due to implementing EITF 02-16 during the fourth quarter of 2003. Net vehicle depreciation and lease charges
were 32.3% of revenue for 2003, compared to 32.5% of revenue in 2002.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased in 2003 primarily due to an increase in sales, marketing and advertising
costs of $7.0 million and an increase of $4.2 million in expenses resulting from the mark to market valuation of the Company’s deferred
compensation and retirement plans. The expense is attributable to mark to market valuation of the corresponding investments and is
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offset by corresponding amounts in other revenue, thus, having no impact on net income. Selling, general and administrative expenses
were 15.4% of revenue for 2003, compared to 15.7% of revenue for 2002.

Net interest expense decreased $4.1 million in 2003 primarily due to lower interest rates, partially offset by an increase in average
vehicle debt. Net interest expense was 7.3% of revenue for 2003, compared to 8.2% of revenue for 2002.

The tax provision for 2003 was $17.4 million. The effective rax rate of 46.7% for 2003 was higher than the 39.6% rate in 2002.
This increase in the effective tax rate was due primarily to lower U.S. pretax earnings in relationship to Canadian pretax losses. The
Company reports taxable income for the U.S. and Canada in separate tax jurisdictions and establishes provisions separately for each
jurisdiction. On a separate, domestic basis, the U.S. effective tax rate approximates the statutory tax rate including the effect of state
income taxes. However, on a consolidated basis, no income tax benefit is recorded for Canadian losses in 2003, thus, increasing the
consolidated effective tax rate.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Comparec

with Year Ended December 31, 2001

Airline traffic continued to decline in 2002 from the already depressed levels of 2001. Dollar, consistent with the rental car industry,
responded by reducing fleet capacity to match lower levels of demand. This reduced capacity allowed for increased industry pricing of

approximately 6% to 8% in 2002 over 2001 levels. Additionally, Thrifty continued to transition franchised operations to corporate
operations, thus, growing its company-owned store base and associated revenues and profits.

OPERATING RESULTS. The Company had income before income taxes of $77.5 million for 2002 as compared to $26.2 million in 2001.

REVENUVES
$ Increase | % Increase /

(in millions) 2002 2001 (decrease) (decrease)
Vehicle rentals $ 897.4 $ 821.8 $ 75.6 9.2%
Vehicle leasing 168.8 162.2 6.6 4.1%
Fees and services 56.2 56.1 0.1 0.3%
Other 10.8 10.1 0.7 7.0%

Total revenues $ 1,133.2 $ 11,0502 $ 83.0 7.9%
Vehicle rental metrics:
Number of rental days 21,056,362 20,640,229 416,133 2.0 %
Average revenue per day $ 42.62 $ 39.82 $ 280 7.0%
Vehicle leasing metrics:
Average number of vehicles leased 30,917 30,087 830 2.8%
Average monthly lease revenue per unit $ 455 $ 449 $ 6 1.3%

Vehicle rental revenue increased 9.2% due to a 7.0% increase in revenue per day, totaling $59.0 million, coupled with a 2.0%
increase in rental days totaling $16.6 million. Vehicle rental revenue grew by 6.9% from franchise acquisitions and by 2.3% from same
store growth.

Vehicle leasing revenue increased 4.1% primarily due to strong growth in franchisee leasing volume totaling $31.9 million,
partially offset by the impact of shifting several locations from franchised operations to corporate operations, which totaled $22.7
million and by a decline of $2.6 million caused by other changes in rate and volume.

EXPENSES
8 Increase ! % Increase /
(in millions) 2002 2001 (decrease) (decrease)
Direct vehicle and operating $ 417.0 $ 401.4 $ 15.6 39%
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net 367.7 354.4 13.3 3.8%
Selling, general and administrative 177.6 169.6 8.0 47 %
Interest expense, net of interest income 93.4 92.4 1.0 1.1%
Amortization of goodwill — 6.2 (6.2) (100.0 %)
Total expenses $ 1,055.7 $  1,024.0 $ 31.7 3.1%
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Direct vehicle and operating expenses for 2002 increased $15.6 million. The increase was due to higher costs associated with
operating additional corporate stores, costs associated with higher depreciable fleet and transaction levels and higher insurance costs.
During 2002, the Company experienced significant increases in quoted market premiums for renewal of its third party insurance coverage
resulting from general insurance industry trends. The Company determined it to be more cost effective to increase its retention of risk of
loss for public liability and property damage claims in various amounts up to $1 million per occurrence. This resulted in an increase in
self insurance costs of $29.7 million. In addition, insurance premiums correspondingly decreased by $17.9 million due to the Company
no longer acquiring third party insurance coverage on claims up to $1 million per occurrence. The Company will continue to evaluate the
cost of insurance against retained risk when renewing its various insurance coverages. Bad debt expenses were lower by $13.5 million in
2002 versus 2001 due to improved financial performance of franchisees as a result of improved industry pricing in 2002 and the negative
impacr of the terrorist attacks on the collectibility of franchisee receivables in 2001, resulting in higher bad debt expense. Other costs
associated with the operation of additional corporate stores and higher depreciable fleet and transaction levels increased by $17.3 million.
Direct vehicle and operating expenses were 36.8% of revenue for 2002, compared to 38.2% of revenue for 2001.

Net vehicle depreciation expense and lease charges increased $13.3 million in 2002. Net vehicle depreciation expense increased
$22.5 million, or 6.5%, due to a 4.9% increase in depreciable fleet and a 1.5% increase in the average depreciation rate. The disposition
of Non-Program Vehicles resulted in a net vehicle gain of $10.2 million in 2002 and $13.8 million in 2001. Lease charges for vehicles
leased from third parties decreased $12.8 million primarily due to fewer vehicles leased during 2002, Net vehicle depreciation and lease
charges were 32.5% of revenue for 2002, compared to 33.7% of revenue for 2001.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $8.0 million in 2002, The higher selling, general and administrative costs
were related to bonus and profit sharing expenses in 2002 totaling $10.1 million that were not incurred in 2001 due to weak economic
conditions and the impact of September 11. The Company also incurred higher costs of $5.1 million attributable to performance share,
deferred compensation and 401 (k) plans which were offset by lower salary expense due to employee reductions at corporate headquarters
in late 2001. In addition, costs associated with the implementation of the new corporate structure in 2002 included a $1.9 million
write-off of software costs that were obsolete as a resule of implementing the new corporate structure, severance costs for personnel
affected by the announced terminations totaling $0.8 million, expenses incurred for communication with franchisees and corporate
operations and training for employees relating to realignment of responsibilities. The increased costs discussed above were offset by
overall reductions in various selling, general and administrative expense categories that individually were not significant totaling $4.8
million. Selling, general and administrative expenses were 15.7% of revenue for 2002, compared to 16.2% of revenue for 2001.

Net interest expense increased $1.0 million in 2002 primarily due to higher average vehicle debt, partially offset by lower interest
rates. Net interest expense was 8.2% of revenue for 2002, compared to 8.8% of revenue for 2001.

The tax provision for 2002 was $30.7 million. The effective tax rate of 39.6% for 2002 was lower than the 47.2% in 2001. The
decrease in the effective tax rate was due primarily to the change in the relationship between permanent differences, including goodwill
amortization, and U.S. pretax earnings in relationship to Canadian pretax results. The effective tax rate for 2002 differs from the U.S.
statutory tax rate due primarily to state and local taxes.

Liquicity and Capital Resources

The Company’s primary uses of liquidity are for the purchase of vehicles for its rental and leasing fleets, non-vehicle capital expendi-
tures, franchisee acquisitions and for working capital. The Company also uses letters of credit or insurance bonds to secure certain
commitments related to airport concession agreements, insurance programs, and for other purposes.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity are cash generated from operations, secured vehicle financing, the Revolving Credit
Facility and insurance bonds. Cash generated by operating activities of $654.1 million for 2003 is primarily the result of net income,
adjusted for depreciation, favorable tax programs {discussed below), which provided the Company tax refunds in 2003 as well as deferral
of tax payments on 2003 earnings to future years and the reduction in outstanding receivables resulting largely from the shift away from
financing leases for vehicles. The liquidity necessary for purchasing vehicles is primarily obtained from secured vehicle financing, most of
which is asset backed notes, sales proceeds from disposal of used vehicles and cash generated by operating activities. The asset backed
notes require varying levels of credit enhancement or overcollateralization, which are provided by a combination of cash, vehicles and
letters of credit. These letters of credit are provided under the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility.

The Company believes that its cash generated from operations, availability under its Revolving Credit Facility, insurance bonding
programs and secured vehicle financing programs are adequate to meet its liquidity requirements for the foreseeable future. A portion of
the secured vehicle financing is supported by 364-day bank facilities, which are renewable annually. The renewals of the Revolving
Credit Facility and the 364-day bank facilities are scheduled to close on April 1, 2004. A significant portion of the secured vehicle
financing consists of asset backed notes, which have varying maturities through 2007. The Company generally issues additional notes
each year to replace maturing notes and provide for growth in its fleet. The Company believes the asset backed note market continues to
be a viable source of vehicle financing and expects to issue additional notes during 2004, partially to replace maturing notes of $269

page. 20



million. The Company has experienced increases during the last few years in the level of credit enhancement or additional collateral
required for new asset backed notes, the Conduir Facility and the Commercial Paper Program. These increased requirements have
reduced liquidity available for other corporate purposes. The Company believes it has sufficient resources to meet these requirements.

Cash used in investing activities was $795.8 million. The principal use of cash in investing activities was the purchase of
revenue-earning vehicles, which totaled $3.4 bitlion, which was partially offset by $2.9 billion in proceeds from the sale of used
revenue-earning vehicles. The Company’s need for cash to finance vehicles is seasonal and typically peaks in the second and third
quarters of the year when fleet levels build to meet seasonal rental demand. Fleet levels are the lowest in the first and fourth quarters
when rental demand is at a seasonal low. Restricted cash increased $201.7 million due to a more significant seasonal decline in the fleet
and to increases in cash credit enhancement for asset backed debt compared to the prior year. The Company expects to continue to
fund its revenue-earning vehicles with cash provided from operations and increased secured vehicle financing. The Company also used
cash for non-vehicle capital expenditures of $22.4 million. These expenditures consist primarily of airport facility improvements for the
Company’s rental locations and investments in information technology equipment and systems. The Company estimates non-vehicle
capital expenditutes to be approximately $30 million in 2004. In addition, the Company used cash for franchisee acquisitions of $36.9
million in 2003 and will continue to pursue the acquisition of cerrain franchisee operations, subject to Revolving Credit Facility
restrictions. The Company evaluates franchise operations which it is interested in operating corporately. These operations generally
relate 1o locations in the 75 largest airports and other key locations in the U.S. and Canada or locations where the Company already
operates one of its brands corporately and it believes synergies could be achieved by having both brands represented. Future franchisee
acquisition expenditures are expected to be financed with available cash and cash to be provided from future operations.

Cash received in financing activities was $190.2 million primarily due to the issuance of $375 million in asset backed notes in
March 2003, an increase of $25 million under the asset backed Variable Funding Note Purchase Facility (the “Conduit Facility”) and an
increase in the net issuance of commercial paper totaling approximately $47 million, partially reduced by the maturity of asset backed
notes totaling $273 million.

In March of 2002, Congress passed the Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act of 2002, which includes a provision allowing
bonus depreciation on certain depreciable assets acquired after September 10, 2001 and before September 11, 2004. In May 2003,
Congress passed the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003, which increased the rate of bonus depreciation for assets
acquired after May 5, 2003 and extended the benefit of this increased rate to assets acquired through December 31, 2004. The Acts
significantly increase the amount of tax basis depreciation that can be claimed on the Company’s federal and some state tax returns.
Also, during 2003 and 2002, the Company utilized a like-kind exchange program for its vehicles whereby tax basis gains on disposal of
eligible revenue-earning vehicles are deferred (the “Like-Kind Exchange Program”). To qualify for Like-Kind Exchange Program treat-
ment, the Company exchanges (through a qualified intermediary) vehicles being disposed of with vehicles being purchased allowing the
Company to carry-over the tax basis of vehicles sold to replacement vehicles, with certain adjustments.

The Company estimates the Acts will eliminate the payment of most cash income taxes through 2004 and has allowed it to
carry back these benefits to obtain refunds of taxes paid in prior years, of which approximately $67 million was received in 2003. No
additional material tax refunds are anticipated. The Acts improve the Company’s liquidity position by increasing cash and cash
equivalents due to significantly reduced cash required for tax payments and from refunds of taxes paid in prior years. The Company
estimates the Like-Kind Exchange Program will extend the period in which ic will pay reduced cash income taxes beyond 2004, when
the bonus depreciation provision included in the Acts expire. The Like-Kind Exchange Program will also significantly increase the
amount of cash and investments restricted for the purchase of replacement vehicles, especially during seasonally reduced fleet periods.
During seasonally low fleet periods, the Company will carry higher restricted cash balances and maintain higher debrt as compared to
periods prior to utilizing the Like-Kind Exchange Program. At December 31, 2003, restricted cash and investments totaled $536.5
million, increasing $201.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Restricted cash and investments are restricted for the
acquisition of revenue-earning vehicles and other specified uses as defined under the asset backed note program, the Canadian fleet
securitization partnership program and the Like-Kind Exchange Program.

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM. On July 30, 2003, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had authorized spend-
ing up to $30 million to repurchase the Company’s shares over a two-year period. During 2003, the Company repurchased 236,000
shares of common stock at an average price of $24.62 per shate totaling approximately $5.8 million.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND CoMmITMENTS. The Company has various contractual commitments primarily related to
long-term debt, commercial paper and short-term borrowings outstanding for vehicle purchases, airport concession fee and operating
lease commitments related to airport and other facilities, and vehicle purchases. The Company expects to fund these commitments with
cash generated from operations, sales proceeds from disposal of used vehicles, the renewal of its 364-day bank facilities and continuation
of asset backed note issuances as existing notes mature.
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The following table provides details regarding the Company’s contractual cash obligations and other commercial commitments
subsequent to December 31, 2003:

Beyond
Payments Due or Commirment Expiration by Period 2004 2005-2006 2007-2008 2}’008 Total
(In Theusands)
Contractual cash obligations:
Long-term debt @ $ 269,036 $ 899,714 $312,500 $ — $1,481,250
Commercial paper outstanding @ 355,296 — — — 355,296
Other short-term borrowings 606,233 — — — 606,233
Subtotal ~ Vehicle debr and obligations 1,230,565 899,714 312,500 —_ 2,442,779
Operating lease commitments 30,962 48,550 38,021 53,838 171,371
Alrport concession fee commitments 43,784 79,044 55,633 83,809 262,270
Vehicle purchase commitments 1,107,725 — — — 1,107,725
Other commitments 8,590 12,765 10,000 10,000 41,355
Total contractual cash obligations $2,421,626 $1,040,073 $416,154 $147,647 $4,025,500
Other commercial commirments:
Letters of credit $ 109,914 $ 56,000 $ — $ — $ 165914

(1) Further discussion of long-term debt, commercial paper outstanding and short-term borrowings is below and in Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Scatements.

Amounts exclude related discounts, where applicable.

AsSET BACKED NOTES. The asset backed note program is comprised of $1.48 billion in asset backed notes with maturities ranging
from 2004 to 2007. Borrowings under the asset backed notes are secured by eligible vehicle collateral and bear interest at fixed rates
ranging from 3.64% to 7.10% on $1.30 billion, including certain floating rate notes swapped to fixed rates, and at floating rates on
$186.1 million ranging from LIBOR plus 0.64% to LIBOR plus 1.05%. Proceeds from the asset backed notes that are temporarily not
utilized for financing vehicles and certain related receivables are maintained in restricted cash and investment accounts, which were
approximately $494 million at December 31, 2003.

In March 2003, Rental Car Finance Corp. issued $375 million of asset backed notes (the “2003 Series Notes”) to replace matur-
ing asset backed notes and provide additional vehicle financing capacity. The 2003 Series Notes are floating rate notes that have a term
of four years. In conjunction with the issuance of the 2003 Series Notes, the Company also entered into an interest rate swap agreement
to convert this floating rate debt to a fixed rate.

Conpult FaciuiTy, In March 2003, a participating bank increased its commitment in the Conduit Facility increasing the existing
$250 million facility to $275 million. In December 2003, the Conduit Facility was extended to April 1, 2004. Effective April 1, 2004,
the Conduit Facility is expected to be renewed for a 364-day period. Proceeds are used for financing of vehicle purchases and for
periodic refinancing of asset backed notes. The Conduit Facility generally bears interest at market-based commercial paper rates and is
renewed annually.

COMMERCIAL PA?ER PROGRAM AND LIQuIDITY FaCILITY. At December 31, 2003, the Company’s commercial paper
program (the “Commercial Paper Program”) had a maximum capacity of $554 million supported by a $485 million, 364-day liquidity
facility (the “Liquidity Facility”). Borrowings under the Commercial Paper Program are secured by eligible vehicle collateral and bear
interest at market-based commercial paper rates. At December 31, 2003, the Company had $354.7 million in commercial paper out-
standing under the Commercial Paper Program. The Commercial Paper Program and the Liquidity Facility are renewable annually.
The Commercial Paper Program peaked in size during the third quarter of 2003 when it reached $463 million to support the seasonal
increase in vehicle fleet.

The Commercial Paper Program is expected to be renewed for a 364-day period effective April 1, 2004, backed by a renewal of
the Liquidity Facility.

VEHICLE DEBT AND OBLIGATIONS. The Company finances its Canadian vehicle fleet through a fleet securitization program
which began in February 1999. This program was amended in March 2003, increasing the vehicle financing up to CND$200 millien
funded through a bank commercial paper conduit and extending the maturity date to December 2004. The Company expects to renew
this program in late 2004. At December 31, 2003, DTG Canada had approximately CND$112.4 million (US$86.7 million) funded

under this program.
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Vehicle manufacturer and bank lines of credit provided $401 million in capacity at December 31, 2003, an increase of approxi-
mately $17 million from December 31, 2002. Borrowings of $244.5 million were outstanding under these lines at December 31, 2003.
These lines of credit are secured by the vehicles financed under these facilities and are primarily renewable annually. The Company
expects to continue using these sources of vehicle financing in 2004 and future years.

REvOLvING CREDIT FaciriTy. The Company has a $215 million senior secured, revolving credit facility {the “Revolving Credit
Facility”). The Revolving Credit Facility is used to provide working capital borrowings and letters of credit. Working capital borrowings
under the Revolving Credit Facility are limited to $70 million. The availability of funds under the Revolving Credit Facility is subject to
the Company’s continued compliance with certain covenants, including a covenant that sets the maximum amount the Company can
spend annually on the acquisition of non-vehicle capital assets, and certain financial covenants including a minimum net worth, a mini-
mum level of adjusted EBITDA, a maximum leverage ratio, a minimum fixed charge coverage ratic, a minimum interest coverage ratio
and the restriction of cash dividends and share repurchases. In March 2003, the Company completed an amendment of the Revolving
Credit Facility affecting a financial covenant, which also included limiting expenditures for non-vehicle capiral assets and franchisee
acquisitions if certain covenant levels are not maintained. In July 2003, the Company completed another amendment of the Revolving
Credit Facility, which among other provisions, allowed the Company to retain the higher limitation for franchisee acquisitions during
2003. At December 31, 2003, the Company had letters of credit outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility of approximately
$159.8 million and no working capital borrowings. The Company has increased the use of letters of credit to support insurance
programs, interest rate swaps and asset backed vehicle financing programs. In early 2004, the Company received bank consent which
further reduces restrictions relating to franchisee acquisitions in the Revolving Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2003, the Company
is in compliance with all covenants. The Revolving Credit Facility matures in August, 2005; however, the Company expects this facility
to be renewed and extended during 2004.

DEBT SERVICING REQUIREMENTS. The Company will continue to have substantial debt and debt service requirements under its
financing arrangements. As of December 31, 2003, the Company's total consolidated debt and other obligations were approximately
$2.4 billion, all of which was secured debt for the purchase of vehicles. The majority of the Company's vehicle debt is issued by special
purpose finance entities as described herein all of which are fully consolidated into the Company’s financial statements. The Company
has scheduled annual principal payments of approximately $1.2 billion in 2004, $604 million in 2005, $296 million in 2006 and $313
million in 2007.

The Company intends to use cash generated from operations and from the sale of vehicles for debr service and, subject to
restrictions under its debt instruments, to make capital investments. The Company has historically repaid its debt and funded its capital
investments (aside from growth in its rental fleet) with cash provided from operations and from the sale of vehicles. The Company has
funded growth in its vehicle fleet by incurring additional secured vehicle debt and with cash generated from operations. The Company
expects to incur additional debt from time to time to the extent permitted under the terms of its debt instruments.

The Company has significant requirements for bonds and letters of credit to support its insurance programs and airport conces-
sion obligations. At December 31, 2003, various insurance companies had issued $42.3 million in bonds and various banks had issued
$62.3 million in lecters of credit to secure these obligations.

INTEREST RATE Risk. The Companyss results of operations depend significantly on prevailing levels of interest rates because of
the large amount of debt it incurs to purchase vehicles. In addition, the Company is exposed to increases in interest rates because a
portion of its debt bears interest at floating rates. The Company estimates that, in 2004, approximately 45% of its average debt will
bear interest at floating rates. The amount of the Company’s financing costs affects the amount the Company must charge its customers
to be profitable. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inflation
The increased acquisition cost of vehicles is the primary inflationary factor affecting the Company. Many of the Company’s other

operating expenses are also expected to increase with inflation. Management does not expect that the effect of inflation on the
Company’s overall operating costs will be greater for the Company than for its competitors.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
As with most companies, the Company must exercise judgment in estimaring certain costs included in its results of operations. The
more significant items include:

Public Liability and property damage — The Company may self-insure or retain a portion of the exposure for losses related to
public liability and property damage insurance. The obligation for public liability and property damage represents an estimate of both
reported accident claims not yet paid and claims incurred but not yet reported, up to the Company’s risk retention level. The Company
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records public liability and property damage expense on a monthly basis based on rental volume in relation to historical accident claim
experience and trends, projections of ultimate losses, expenses, premiums and administrative costs. Management monitors the adequacy
of the liability and monthly accrual rates based on the services of an independent third party actuary and internal analysis of the devel-
opment of the claim reserves, the accident claim history and rental volume. Since the ultimate disposition of the claims is uncertain, the
likelihood of materially different results is possible, but the potential volatility of these estimates is reduced due to the frequency of
internal reviews and reviews by the third party actuary and significant historical data available for similar claims.

Vehicle depreciation expense — The Company generally purchases 75% to 85% of its vehicles as Program Vehicles for which resid-
val values are determined by depreciation rates thar are established and guaranteed by the manufacturers. The remaining 15% to 25%
of the Company’s vehicles are purchased without the benefit of a manufacturer residual value guaranty program. For these Non-
Program Vehicles, the Company must estimate what the residual values of these vehicles will be at the expected time of disposal to
determine monthly depreciation rates by reviewing the projected market value for the vehicles at expected date of disposition and the
overall outlook for the used car market. The Company continually evaluates estimated residual values. Differences between actual resid-
ual values and those estimated by the Company result in a gain or loss on disposal and are recorded as an adjustment to depreciation
expense. The average life of the Non-Program Vehicles is seven to nine months and the Company has generally experienced gains on
disposal. However, recent declines in used car market prices have resulted in a corresponding decline in these gains or increase in losses,
as experienced in late 2002 and continuing throughout much of 2003. Many factors affect the market value of used cars including
increasing use of incentives and zero-percent financing by automobile manufacturers for new vehicles and overall economic conditions.
The likelihood that the Company’s estimates could materially change is possible due to the volatility of the used car market. A three
percent change in the expected residual value of Non-Program Vehicles sold during 2003 would have impacted vehicle depreciation
expense, net by $10.7 million.

Bad debt expense — The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts and charges bad debt expense for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of franchisees to make required payments. Management reviews monthly the individual accounts of
franchisees with past due balances to determine the likelihood of collectibility and the amount of bad debt expense, if any, required for
a particular franchisee. Factors considered include the aging and magnitude of past due amounts, the franchisees’ operating and credit
history, market conditions, operating plan and available collateral. The Company records a reserve for the potential amounts owed by
its franchisees that will not be collected when the amount of the loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated. Accounts are typically
charged off at the point the Company reaches settlement or no longer pursues collection. The likelihood that results may materially
differ from amounts estimated is possible due to circumstances outside the franchisees’ or the Company’s control with respect to
economic, industry or other external conditions. In addition, as the Company continues to acquire franchisees in larger markets, the
corresponding receivables and risk of collectibility from franchisees will continue to decline.

New Accourting Standards

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” which addresses financial accounting and
reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. It applies
to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and
(or) the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS
No. 143 as required on January 1, 2003. Adoption of SFAS No. 143 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial state-
ments of the Company.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This statement
supersedes EITF No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity.”
Under this statement, a liability or a cost associated with a disposal or exit activity is recognized at fair value when the liability is
incurred rather than at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan as required under EITF No. 94-3. The provisions of this
statement are effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early adoption permitted. Since the
Company formally communicated the reorganization plans in December 2002, the Company applied the provisions of EITF No. 94-3
rather than electing to early adopt SFAS No. 146. Differences in accounting treatment between these two standards were not material as
it related to the Company’s reorganization. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 146 as required on January 1, 2003.
Adoption of SFAS No. 146 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, (“FIN 457)". This interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to
be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also requires a
guarantor to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation it has undertaken in issuing the
guarantee. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of the interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified beginning in 2003. The disclosure requirements are effective for interim or annual financial statements
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beginning on December 31, 2002, The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 45 as required on January 1, 2003. Adoption of FIN
45 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

EITF 02-16 “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor”, is applicable
for the Company in relation to accounting for purchase and promotional incentives. The Company adopted EITF 02-16 in the fourth
quarter of 2003 due to an amendment to the Company’s vehicle supply agreement.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” as amended in December
2003 (“FIN 46(R)”) an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51. FIN 46(R) requires existing unconsolidated variable
interest entities (“VIE's") to be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss, if
any, from the VIE’s activities, or entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns, or both. The Company believes that its
involvement with Thrifty National Ad qualifies Thrifty National Ad as a VIE with the Company representing the primary beneficiary.
Consequently, Thrifry National Ad will be initially consolidated in the Company’s financial statements beginning with the quarter end-
ing March 31, 2004. Thrifty National Ad is a separate entity organized for the purpose of conducting the advertising and promotion
programs for the Thrifty Car Rental brand as directed by the Thrifty Car Rental franchisee network and representatives of the
Company. The total assets of Thrifty National Ad were approximately $6 million as of December 31, 2003 and its net income was
approximately $3 million for the year then ended. The Company’s estimated maximum exposure to loss as a result of its continuing
involvement with Thrifty National Ad is expected to be minimal as expenditures are managed by Thrifty National Ad based on
revenues. The Company also evaluated its franchisee network as potential VIE’s subject to possible consolidation. The Company deter-
mined that its franchisees met the FIN 46(R) definition of a business; however, the Company did not provide more than half of each
franchisees’ equity, among other qualifying conditions. Therefore, the Company believes that its franchisees do not qualify as VIE’s
under FIN 46(R) and are not required to be consolidated into the Company’s financial statements.

SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” was issued and effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003 and requires
prospective accounting treatment. This standard had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Outlook for 2004

The Company expects continued growth in travel in 2004 as the economy improves. The airline industry is expected to add capacity in
2004 to accommodate an expected increase in travel demand. Pricing trends in 2004 remain uncertain. The Company’s corporate oper-
ations should continue to benefit from franchisee acquisitions in 2004. Leasing revenue is expected to decline as a result of franchisee
acquisitions and from continued competition with the Company’s leasing program. The used car market has stabilized which will allow
for lower vehicle depreciation costs for Non-Program Vehicles. Attractive 2004 model year programs resulting from excess automobile
manufacturing capacity should also provide lower costs for Program Vehicles. The new operating model and organizational strucrure
will provide increased efficiencies. The Company will make additional investment in improved IT systems, marketing initiatives and
infrastructure to facilitate additional growth.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The table below provides information about the Company’s market sensitive financial instruments and constitutes a “forward-
looking statement.” The Company’s primary market risk exposure is changing interest rates, primarily in the United States. The Company
manages interest rates through use of a combination of fixed and floating rate debt and interest rate swap agreements (refer to Note 11 to
the consolidated finarcial statements). All items described are non-trading and are stated in U.S. Dollars. Because a portion of the
Company’s debt is denominated in Canadian dollars, its carrying value is impacted by exchange rate fluctuations. However, this foreign
currency risk is mitigated by the underlying collateral which is the Canadian fleet. The fair value of the interest rate swaps is calculated using
projected market interest rates over the term of the related debt instruments as provided by the counter parties.

Fair Value

Expected Maturity Dates December 31,
as of December 31, 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Total 2003
(In Thousands)
DEBT:
Vehicle debt and obligations - floating rates (1) $861,721 $477,802 $295,833 $312,500 $1,947,856  $1,947,301
Weighted average interest rates 1.99% 3.31% 4.34% 5.23%
Vehicle debt and obligations - fixed rates $269,036 $126,079 $ — $ — $ 395,115 $ 410,910
Weighted average interest rates 6.22% 6.67% — —
Vehicle debt and obligations - Canadian

dollar denominated $ 99808 $ — $ — $ — % 99,808 $ 99,808
Weighted average interest rates 3.27% — — —
INTEREST RATE SWAPS: ’
Variable to Fixed $ —  $291,667 $295,833 $312,500 $ 900,000 $ 933,087

Average pay rate 5.28% 5.53% 3.64%

Average receive rate 2.70% 3.80% 4.55%

(1) Floating rate vehicle debe and obligations include the $350 million Series 2001 Notes and $175 million relating to the Series 2002 Notes and the $375 million Series 2003 notes swapped
from floating interest rates to fixed interest rates.

Fair Value

Expected Maturity Dates December 31,
a5 of December 31, 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Total 2002
(In Thousands)
DEBT:
Vehicle debt and obligations - floating rates (1)~ $805,875  § — $477,302 $233,333 $1,517,010  $1,516,424
Weighted average interest rates 2.45% — 4.33% 4.90%
Vehicle debt and obligations - fixed rates $251,095 $269,036 $126,079 $ — $ 646,210 $ 661,655
Weighted average interest rates 6.40% 6.22% 6.67% —
Vehicle debt and obligations - Canadian

dollar denominated $ 61,818 $ — $ —_ $ — $ 61,818 $ 61,818
Weighted average interest rates 3.11% — — —
INTEREST RATE SWAPS:
Variable to Fixed $ — 3 — $291,667 $233,333 $ 525,000 $ 566,988

Average pay rate 5.28% 6.04%

Average receive rate 3.72% 4.40%

(1) Floating rate vehicle debt and obligations include the $350 million Series 2001 Notes and $175 million relating to the Series 2002 Notes swapped from floating interest
rates to fixed interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity — Based on the Company’s level of floating rate debt, excluding notes with floating interest rates swapped
to fixed interest rates and Canadian floating rate vehicle debt, at December 31, 2003, a 50 basis point fluctuation in interest rates
would have an approximate $6 million impact on the Company’s expected pretax income. In 2003, the Company has higher floating
rate debt due to a change in the composition of floating rate and fixed rate debt, thus, impacting the Company’s sensitivity to floating
rate debt.

page. 26



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Independent Auditors’ Repor?

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Doliar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item
15. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standatds require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Dollar
Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
goodwill and other intangible assets effective January 1, 2002 due to adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assers.”

DML Edowcle LP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
March 12, 2004
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DOLLAR THRIFTY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

’

Consolicatza Statements o income

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands Except Per Share Data)
REVENUES:
Vehicle rentals $1,014,121 $ 897,384 $ 821,834
Vehicle leasing 144,368 168,792 162,204
Fees and services 54,149 56,237 56,057
Other 15,248 10,781 10,075
Total revenues 1,227,886 1,133,194 1,050,170
COST AND EXPENSES:
Direct vehicle and operating 515,273 416,954 401,417
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net 396,497 367,752 354,394
Selling, general and administrative 189,575 177,562 169,599
Interest expense, net of interest income of
$4,640, $4,975 and $6,570 89,296 93,427 92,365
Amortization of goodwill — — 6,178
Total costs and expenses 1,190,641 1,055,695 1,023,953
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 37,245 77,499 26,217
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 17,405 A 30,668 12,380
NET INCOME $ 19,840 $ 46,831 $ 13,837
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.81 $ 1.93 $ 0.57
Diluted $ 0.78 $ 1.88 $ 0.57

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

page. 28



DOLLAR THRIFTY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consclideied Baiance Sheeis

December 31, 2003 2002
(In Thousands Except Share and Per Share Dasa)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 192,006 $ 143,485
Restricted cash and investments 536,547 334,849
Recetvables, net 163,465 236,511
Prepaid expenses and other assets 67,375 59,785
Revenue-earning vehicles, net 2,136,719 2,006,644
Property and equipment, net 97,939 92,181
Income taxes receivable — 61,314
Software and other intangible assets, net 14,587 15,381
Goodwill 203,861 165,327
$3,412,499 $3,115,477
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LiABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 48,515 $ 53,660
Accrued liabilities 171,148 163,890
Deferred income tax liability 160,923 134,637
Public liability and property damage 56,294 39,506
Vehicle debt and obligations 2,442,162 2,224,303
Total liabilities 2,879,042 2,615,996
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS  EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value:
Authorized 10,000,000 shares; none outstanding _— —
Common stock, $.01 par value:
Authorized 50,000,000 shares; 25,196,941 and 24,599,890 issued,
respectively, and 24,960,941 and 24,599,890 outstanding, respectively 252 246
Additional capital 729,306 717,081
Accumulated deficit (170,947) (190,787)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (19,345) (27,059)
Treasury stock, at cost (236,000 shares) (5,809) —
Total stockholders’ equity 533,457 499,481
$3,412,499 $3,115,477

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR THRIFTY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands)
CasH Frows FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 19,840 $ 46,831 $ 13,837
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation:
Vehicle depreciation 385,716 369,875 347,241
Non-vehicle depreciation 15,382 14,418 13,581
Net (gains)/losses from disposition of revenue-earning
vehicles 1,925 (10,244) (13,752)
Amortization 5,637 4,418 9,823
Writedown of software — 1,929 —
Common stock option transactions — — 40
Performance share incentive plan 2,177 2,538 —
Net losses from sale of property and equipment 104 193 —
Provision for losses on receivables 4,729 8,258 21,790
Deferred income taxes 22,815 124,375 12,810
Change in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
Income taxes payable/receivable 61,314 (53,165) (8,149)
Receivables 110,154 38,488 21,216
Prepaid expenses and other assets {1,728) 10,675 (1,129)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,213 48,290 (45,930)
Public liability and property damage 16,788 16,367 (12,230)
Other 1,036 179 (367)
Net cash provided by operating activities 654,102 623,425 358,781
CaSH FLows FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Revenue-earning vehicles:
Purchases (3,441,116) (3,399,323) (2,815,783)
Proceeds from sales 2,906,260 2,472,771 2,421,568
Net change in restricted cash and investments (201,698) (286,759) (17,330)
Property, equipment and software:
Purchases (22,423) (11,410) (32,256)
Proceeds from sales 39 36 483
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (36,882) (261) (2,271}
Net cash used in investing activities $ (795,820) $(1,224,9406) $ (445,589)
(Continued)
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DoLLAR THRIFTY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands)
CaSH FLows FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Vehicle debt and obligations:
Proceeds $ 5,370,679 $ 6,559,751 $ 7,667,314
Payments (5,179,583) (5,852,312) (7,574,773)
Issuance of common shares 10,054 5,584 2,218
Purchase of common stock for the treasury (5,809) — (3,615)
Financing issue costs (5,102) (5,549) (5,297)
Net cash provided by financing activities 190,239 707,474 85,847
CHANGE IN CAsSH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 48,521 105,953 (961)
CasH AND CaSH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of year 143,485 37,532 38,493
End of year $ 192,006 § 143,485 $ 37532
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF
CaSH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for/(refund of):
Income taxes to (from) taxing authorities $  (67,236) $  (41,236) $ 7,125
Interest $ 88,581 $ 93,348 $ 94,244
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF
NONCASH ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of common stock for director compensation $ 60 $ 67 $ 60
Receivables from capital lease of vehicles to franchisees $ 42,222 $ 86,007 $ 57,963
Deferred income on capital lease of vehicles to franchisees $ — $ 177 $ 401
Acquisition of franchises S — $ — $ 422
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
(Concluded)
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DoLLAR THRIFTY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consoiidated Statement of Stockhoiders’ Equity

Accumulated

Common Stock Other Total
$.01 Par Value Additional Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury Stock Stockholders’
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss} Shares Amount Equity
(In Thousands Except Share and Per Share Data)
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2001 24,191,893 § 242 $710,320  $(251.455) $(968) — $ — 458,139
Issuance of common shares for
director compensation 3,828 — 60 — — — — 60
Issuance of common shares for
401(k) company match 12,562 — 162 — — — — 162
Stock option transactions 102,074 1 2,035 — — — — 2,036
Performance share incentive plan:
Purchase of common stock for
the treasury — — — — — (167,241) (3,615) (3,615)
Issuance of common stock in settlement
of vested performance shares:
Common stock 459 — — — — — — —
Treasury stock transferred to
deferred compensation plan — — (3,615) — — 167,241 3,615 —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — 13,837 — — — 13,837
Interest rate swap — — — — (6,758) — — (6,758)
Foreign currency translation — — — — (540) — —_ (540)
Total comprehensive income — — — 13,837 (7,298) — — 6,539
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2001 24,310,816 243 708,962 (237,618) (8,266) — — 463,321
Issuance of common shares for
director compensation 3,320 — 67 — — — — 67
Issuance of common shares for
401(k) company match 80,116 1 1,589 — —_ — — 1,590
Stock option transactions 205,638 2 3,925 -— — — — 3,927
Performance share incentive plan — — 2,538 — — — — 2,538
Comprehensive income:
Net income —_— — — 46,831 — — — 46,831
Interest rate swap — — — — (18,855) — —  (18,855)
Foreign currency translation — — — — 62 — — 62
Toral comprehensive income — — — 46,831 (18,793) — — 28,038
BaLaNCE, DECEMBER 31, 2002 24,599,890 246 717,081 (190,787)  (27,059) — — 499,481
Issuance of common shares for
director compensation 3,040 — 60 — — — — 60
Issuance of common shares for
401(k) company match 102,219 1 2,059 — — — — 2,060
Stock option transactions 446 844 5 7,929 — — — — 7,934
Purchase of common stock for
the treasury — — — — —  {236,000) (5,809) (5,809)
Performance share incentive plan — — 1,723 — — — — 1,723
Issuance of common stock in settlement
of vested performance shares 40,019 — —_ — — — — —
Restricted stock for director
compensation — — 454 — — — — 454
Issuance of common shares 4,929 — — — — — — —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — 19,840 — — — 19,840
Interest rate swap — — — — 5,430 — — 5,430
Foreign currency translation — — — — 2,284 — — 2,284
Total comprehensive income — — — 19,840 7,714 — — 27,554
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003 25,196,941 $ 252 $729,306  $(170,947) $(19,345) (236,000) $(5,809) $533,457

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DoOLLAR THRIFTY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consoiidated Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 200!

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATICN

Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. (“DTG”) is the successor to Pentastar Transportation Group, Inc. Prier to December 23,
1997, DTG was a wholly owned subsidiary of Chrysler Corporation, now known as DaimlerChrysler Corporation (such entity and its
subsidiaries and members of its affiliated group are hereinafter referred to as “DaimlerChrysler”). On December 23, 1997, DTG complered
an initial public offering of all its outstanding common stock owned by DaimlerChrysler together with additional shares issued by DTG.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company realigned its corporate operating structure from a brand structure to a functional
structure combining the management of operations and administrative functions for both the Dollar and Thrifty brands. Due to the
realignment, the Company will no longer report Dollar and Thrifty as operating segments. Consistent with the new structure, manage-
ment will make business and operating decisions on an overall company basis. Financial results are no longer available by brand.

DTG’s significant wholly owned subsidiaries include DTG Operations, Inc., Dollar Rent A Car, Inc., Thrifty, Inc., Rental Car
Finance Corp. ("RCFC”) and Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp. (‘DTFC”). Thrifty, Inc. is the parent company to Thrifty Car Sales, Inc.
and Thrifty Rent-A-Car System, Inc., which is the parent company to Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group Canada Inc. (*DTG Canada”).
DTG Canada has a partnership agreement with an unrelated bank’s conduit, which included the creation of a limited partnership, TCL
Funding Limited Partnership, which is appropriately consolidated with DTG and subsidiaries. RCFC and DTFC are special purpose
financing entities, which were formed in 1995 and 1998, respectively, and are appropriately consolidated with DTG and subsidiaries.
RCFC and DTFC are each separate legat entities whose assets are not available to satisfy any claims of creditors of DTG or any of its
other subsidiaries. The term the “Company” is used to refer to DTG and subsidiaries, individually or collectively, as the context may
require. Dollar Rent-A-Car, Inc., the Dollar brand and DTG Operations, Inc. operating under the Dollar brand are individually and
collectively referred to hereafter as “Dollar”. Thrifty, Inc., Thrifty Rent-A-Car System, Inc., Thrifty Car Sales, Inc., the Thrifty brand
and DTG Operations, Inc. operating under the Thrifty brand are individually and collectively referred to hereafter as “Thrifty”.
Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business — The Company, through its Dollar and Thrifty brands, is engaged in the business of the daily rental of
vehicles to business and leisure customers through company-owned stores and in the business of leasing vehicles to their franchisees for
use in the daily vehicle rental business throughout the United States and Canada, as well as selling vehicle rental franchises worldwide
and providing sales and marketing, reservations, data processing systems, insurance and other services to their franchisees. RCFC and
DTFC provide vehicle financing services to the Company.

Estimates — The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and on deposit, including highly liquid invest-
ments with initial maturities of three months or less.

Restricted Cash and Investments — Restricted cash and investments are restricted for the acquisition of vehicles and other
specified uses under the rental car asset backed note indenture and other agreements (Note 10). A portion of these funds are restricred
due to the like-kind exchange tax program for deferred tax gains on eligible vehicle disposals. These funds are primarily held in a highly
rated money marker fund with investments primarily in government and corporate obligations with a dollar-weighted average maruriry
not to exceed 60 days, as permitted by the indenture. Restricted cash and investments are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
Interest earned on restricted cash and investments was $3,214,000, $3,200,000 and $3,531,000, for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
and remains in restricted cash and investments.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — An allowance for doubtful accounts is generally established during the period in which
receivables are recorded. The allowance is maintained at a level deemed appropriate based on loss experience and other factors affecting
collectibility.

Financing Issue Costs — Financing issue costs related to vehicle debt and the Revolving Credit Facility are deferred and
amortized to interest expense over the term of the related debt using the effective interest method.

Revenue-Earning Vehicles — Revenue-earning vehicles are stated at cost, net of related discounts. The Company generally
purchases 75% to 85% of its vehicles for which residual values are determined by depreciation rates that are established and guaranteed
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by the manufacturers (“Program Vehicles”). The remaining 15% to 25% of the Company’s vehicles are purchased without the benefit
of a manufacturer residual value guaranty program (“Non-Program Vehicles”). For these Non-Program Vehicles, the Company must
estimate what the residual values of these vehicles will be at the expected time of disposal to determine monthly depreciation rates.
The Company continually evaluates estimated residual values. Differences between actual residual values and those estimated by the
Company result in a gain or loss on disposal and are recorded as an adjustment to depreciation expense. Depreciation rates generally
range from 0.83% to 3.27% per month.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated or amortized using principally the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Estimated useful lives range from ten to thirty years for build-
ings and improvements and three to seven years for furniture and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lives of
the related leases.

Software and Other Intangible Assets — Software and other intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized using the
straight-line method primarily over five years. The remaining useful life of all software and other intangible assets is evaluated annually
to assess whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining amortization period.

Goodwill — The excess of acquisition costs over the fair value of net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. In accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill is no longer
amortized but instead is tested for impairment at least annually (Note 9). Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002,
goodwill was amortized using the straight-line method over forty and twenty year periods.

Long-Lived Assets — The Company reviews the value of long-lived assets, including software and other intangible assets, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable based
upon estimated future cash flows. In connection with the reorganization (Note 19), Thrifty recorded a writeoff of $1,929,000 in 2002
for certain software costs, which were not to be utilized.

Accounts Payable — Disbursements in excess of bank balances of $15,546,000 and $16,713,000 are included in accounts
payable at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Derivative Instruments — The Company uses SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
and its amendments which establish accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and for hedging activities. It requires
that all derivatives be recognized as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position and be measured ar fair value. In
March 2003, June 2002 and March 2001, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements, which qualify for hedge accounting
trearment under SFAS No. 133 (Note 11).

Public Liability and Property Damage — Provisions for public liability and property damage on self-insured claims are
made by charges primarily to direct vehicle and operating expense. Accruals for such charges are based upon actuarially determined
evaluations of estimated ultimare liabilities on reported and unreported claims, prepared on at least an annual basis by an independent
actuary. Historical data related to the amount and timing of payments for self-insured claims is utilized in preparing the actuarial
evaluations. The accrual for public liability and property damage claims is discounted based upon the independently prepared,
actuarially determined estimated timing of payments to be made in the future. Management reviews the actual timing of payments as
compared with the annual actuarial estimate of timing of payments and has determined that there have been no material differences in
the timing of payments for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003.

Foreign Currency Translation - Foreign assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet
date, and results of operations are translated using an average rate for the period. Translation adjustments are accumulated and reported
as a component of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income.

Income Statement Presentation — The Company has not separately disclosed the costs and expenses related to its company-
owned and franchised operations that correspond with the Company’s revenue-generating activities such as vehicle rental and vehicle
leasing reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income since certain of such costs and expenses have not been separately identified
in the Company’s financial systems and it is not practicable to separate or disclose them in a reasonable and consistent manner.

Revenue Recognition — Revenues from vehicle rentals are recognized as earned on a daily basis under the related rental contracts
with customers. Revenues from leasing vehicles to franchisees are principally under operating leases with fixed monthly payments and
are recognized as earned over the lease terms. Revenues from fees and services include providing sales and marketing, reservations, infor-
mation systems and other services to franchisees. Revenues from these services are generally based on a percentage of franchisee rental
revenue or upon providing reservations and are recognized as earned on a monthly basis. Initial franchise fees, which are recorded to
other revenues, are recognized upon substantial completion of all material services and conditions of the franchise sale, which coincides
with the date of sale and commencement of operations by the franchisee.

Advertising Costs — Advertising costs are primarily expensed as incurred. The Company incurred advertising expense of
$32,832,000, $28,074,000 and $28,781,000, for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Thrifty’s primary advertising is conducted by a historically unconsolidated affiliated entity, Thrifty Rent-A-Car System, Inc.
National Advertising Committee (“Thrifty National Ad”). The Company will consolidate Thrifry National Ad beginning with the
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quarter ending March 31, 2004 in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) (See “New Accounting Standards”). Thrifty made
payments of $7,187,000, $4,154,000 and $3,447,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to Thrifty National Ad to support funding
of advertising campaigns, which are included in advertising costs. Thrifty also received reimbursement from Thrifty National Ad for
administrative services such as information technology and accounting services, totaling $2,586,000, $2,565,000 and $2,757,000
during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, which are recorded as offsets to selling, general and administratdive expense. The scope and
related charges for these services are negotiated on an annual basis between the Company’s management and designated franchisee
members of Thrifty National Ad.

Environmental Costs — The Company’s operations include the storage of gasoline in underground storage tanks at certain
company-owned stores. Liabilities incurred in connection with the remediation of accidental fuel discharges are recorded when it is
probable that obligations have been incurred and the amounts can be reasonably estimated.

Contingent Rent — The Company recognizes contingent rent expense associated with certain airport concession agreements
monthly as incurred since the Company’s achievement of the annual targeted qualifying revenues is probable.

Income Taxes — U.S. operating results are included in the Company’s consolidated U.S. income tax returns. The Company has
provided for income taxes on its separate taxable income or loss and other tax attributes. Deferred income taxes are provided for the
temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities. A valuation
allowance is recorded for deferred income tax assets when management determines it is more likely than not that such assets will not
be realized.

Earnings Per Share — Basic earnings per share (‘EPS”) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is based on the combined weighted average number of common shares and
common share equivalents outstanding which include, where appropriate, the assumed exercise of options. In computing diluted EPS,
the Company has utilized the treasury stock method.

Stock-Based Compensation — Prior to January 1, 2003, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation using the
intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” Compensation cost for stock options, if any, was measured as the excess of the quoted market price of the Company’s stock
at the date of grant over the amount the grantee must pay to acquire the stock. Compensation cost for shares issued under performance
share and restricted stock plans was recorded based upon the current market value of the Company’s stock at the end of each period.
The Company has provided the disclosure only requirements of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” for stock-
based compensation grants made through December 31, 2002.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 changing from the intrinsic value-based
method to the fair value-based method of accounting for stock-based compensation, electing the prospective treatment option, which
will require recognition as compensation expense for all future employee awards granted, modified or settled as allowed under SFAS No.
148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” an amendment of SFAS No. 123, The Company did
not issue stock options in 2003.

The following table provides pro forma results as if the fair value-based method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested
awards, including stock options and performance share and restricted stock awards, in each period presented:

December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands)
Net income, as reported $ 19,840 $ 46,831 $ 13,837

Add: compensation expense related to performance share and restricted stock
awards included in reported ner income, net of related tax effects 1,154 1,533 —

Deduct: compensation expense related to stock options granted prior to
January 1, 2003 and performance share and restricted stock awards

determined under fair value-based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (2,072) (4,207) (2,286)
Pro forma net income $ 18,922 $ 44,157 $11,551
Earnings per share:

Basic, as reported $ 081 $ 193 $ 057

Basic, pro forma § 077 § 182 $ 048

Diluted, as reported $ 078 $ 1.88 $ 057

Diluted, pro forma $ 075 S 177 $ 047
Risk-free interest rate — 4.46% 4.33%
Expected volatiliry — 54.57 % 56.43 %
Weighted-average expected life of awards — 5 years 0 years

Dividend payments —_ — —
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New Accounting Standards — In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”
which addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the
associated asset retirement costs. It applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the
acquisition, construction, development and (or) the normal.operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. The
Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 143 as required on January 1, 2003. Adoption of SFAS No. 143 did not have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This statement
supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITFE”) No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and
Other Costs to Exit an Activity.” Under this statement, a liability or a cost associated with a disposal or exit activity is recognized at fair
value when the liability is incurred rather than at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan as required under EITF No. 94-3.
The provisions of this statement are effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early adop-
tion permitted. Since the Company formally communicated the reorganization plans in December 2002 (Note 19), the Company
applied the provisions of EITF No. 94-3 rather than electing to early adopr SFAS No. 146. Differences in accounting treatment
between these two standards were not material as it related to the Company’s reorganization. The Company adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 146 as required on January 1, 2003. Adoption of SFAS No. 146 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, (“FIN 45”)”. This interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to
be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also requires a
guarantor to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation it has undertaken in issuing the
guarantee. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of the interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified beginning in 2003. The disclosure requirements are effective for interim or annual financial statements
beginning on December 31, 2002. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 45 as required on January 1, 2003. Adoption of
FIN 45 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

EITF 02-16 “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor”, is applicable
for the Company in relation to accounting for purchase and promotional incentives. The Company adopted EITF 02-16 in the fourth
quarter of 2003 due to an amendment to the Company’s vehicle supply agreement (Note 3).

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” as amended in December
2003 (“FIN 46(R)”) an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51. FIN 46(R) requires existing unconsolidated variable
interest entities (“VIE’s”) to be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss, if
any, from the VIE’s activities, or entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns, or both. The Company believes that its
involvement with Thrifty National Ad qualifies Thrifty National Ad as a VIE with the Company representing the primary beneficiary.
Consequently, Thrifty Narional Ad will be consolidated in the Company’s financial statements beginning with the quarter ending
March 31, 2004. Thrifty National Ad is a separate entity organized for the purpose of conducting the advertising and promotion
programs for the Thrifty Car Rental brand as directed by the Thrifty Car Rental franchisee network and representatives of the
Company. The total assets of Thrifty National Ad were approximately $6 million as of December 31, 2003 and its net income was
approximately $3 million for the year then ended. The Company’s estimated maximum exposure to loss as a result of its continuing
involvement with Thrifty National Ad is expected to be minimal as expenditures are managed by Thrifty National Ad based on
revenues. The Company also evaluated its franchisee network as potential VIE's subject to possible consolidation. The Company
determined that its franchisees met the FIN 46(R) definition of a business; however, the Company did not provide more than half of
each franchisees’ equity, among other qualifying conditions. Therefore, the Company believes that its franchisees do not qualify as
VIE’s under FIN 46(R) and are not required to be consolidated into the Company’s financial statements.

SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” was issued and effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003 and requires
prospective accounting treatment. This standard had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statements to conform
to the classifications used in 2003.

Beginning July 1, 2003, the Company reclassified the amortization of certain vehicle manufacturers’ purchase incentives totaling
$26,896,000 to vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net. Previously such amortization was recorded as offsets against direct vehicle
and operating expense. Amounts of $13,008,000 and $11,500,000 for the comparable periods in the consolidated financial statements
for 2002 and 2001, respectively, have been reclassified to conform to the classifications used in the consolidated financial statements in
2003. These reclassifications had no impact on revenues or net inconte.
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3. CHANCGE IN ACCOUNTINC FCR PROMOTICNAL PAVMENTS

As discussed in Note 6, the Company changed its method of accounting for Promotional Payments received under its Vehicle
Supply Agreement (*VSA”). In October, 2003, the Company amended its VSA and implemented the provisions of EITF 02-16,
“Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor.” Under EITF 02-16, effective
with the amendment to the VSA, the Company began accounting for these promotional payments received as a reduction of the cost of
the vehicles when acquired and recognized over the lives of the vehicles as a reduction of depreciation expense. Under the new method,
the promotional payments will be recognized over the 19 to 20 month period during which the related vehicles are to be cycled through
the fleet. Previously, these payments were accrued and amortized on a straight line basis over the 12 months vehicle mode! year as a
reduction in direct vehicle and operating expenses. As required under EITF 02-16, the effect of this change is to be accounted for
prospectively as a change in estimate. Accordingly, there is no cumulative effect of a change in accounting method and the Company
incurred additional direct vehicle and operating expense of $26,598,000, partially offset by reduced vehicle depreciation expense of
$4,476,000 in the quarter ended December 31, 2003, The effect of this change was to reduce income before income taxes for the year
ended December 31, 2003 by $22,122,000 and net income by $13,273,000 or $0.52 per diluted share.

4, ACQUISITIONS

During 2003, the Company acquired certain‘assets and assumed certain liabilities relating to 59 locations from former
franchisees in Hawaii, Manchester, Atlanta, Houston, Las Vegas, Memphis, Detroit, Cleveland, Miami, Ft. Lauderdale, West Palm
Beach, Hartford, Ontario, California; and Edmonton, Alberta, Canada for the Thrifty brand and the master franchise rights in Canada
for the Dollar brand. During 2002, Thrifty acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of 31 locations from former fran-
chisees, the largest being the Boston, Denver, Baltimore and Washington, D.C. airport locations. Additionally, Dollar acquired certain
assets and assumed certain liabilities from a former franchisee in Louisville, Kentucky. During 2001, Thrifty acquired certain assets and
assumned certain liabilities of 19 locations from four former franchisees, the largest being the Dallas and San Francisco airport locations.
Total cash paid, net of cash acquired, for these acquisitions was $36,882,000, $261,000 and $2,271,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The goodwill recognized in these transactions totaled $37,802,000, $255,000 and $2,351,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, all of which is amortizable for rax purposes. Each of these transactions has been accounted for using the purchase method
of accounting and operating results of the acquirees from the dates of acquisition, which are individually and collectively not material to
amounts presented for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, are included in the consolidated statements of income of
the Company.

5. RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of the following:

December 31, 2003 2002

(In Thousands)

Trade accounts receivable $ 96,176 $101,364

Notes receivable 3,010 7,485

Financing receivables, net 8,321 67,845

Due from DaimlerChrysler 68,721 79,346
176,228 256,040

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (12,763) (19,529)

$163,465 $236,511

Trade accounts and notes receivable include primarily amounts due from franchisees and tour operators arising from billings
under standard credit terms for services provided in the normal course of business and amounts due from the sale of revenue—earning
vehicles. Notes receivable are generally issued to certain franchisees at current market interest rates with varying marurities and are
generally guaranteed by franchisees.

Financing receivables arise from direct financing and sales-type leases of vehicles with franchisees. These recetvables principally
have terms up to one year and are collateralized by the vehicles. Direct financing and sales—type lease receivables are presented net of
unearned income of $135,000 and $619,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Due from DaimlerChrysler is comprised primarily of amounts due under various guaranteed residual, buyback, incentive and
promotion programs, which are paid according to contract terms and are generally received within 60 days.
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6, REVENUE-EARNING VEHICLES

Revenue-earning vehicles consist of the following:

December 31, 2003 2002

(In Thousands)

Revenue-earning vehicles $2,320,618 $2,190,667

Less accumulated depreciation (183,899) (184,023)
$2,136,719 $2,006,644

Dollar and Thrifty entered into U.S. vehicle supply agreements with DaimlerChrysler, which commenced with the 1997 model
year and expired in July 2001. In June 2000, the Company entered into a new vehicle supply agreement with DaimlerChrysler, which
enabled the Company to acquire revenue-carning vehicles beginning with the 2002 model year through the 2006 model year. In
October 2002, the Company finalized a new vehicle supply agreement (the “VSA”) with DaimlerChrysler. The VSA enables the
Company to acquire revenue—earning vehicles through the 2007 model year. Following the amendment to the VSA in October 2003
{Note 3), the Company is required to purchase at least 75% of its vehicles from DaimlerChrysler until a cerrain minimum level is
reached, of which 83% will be Program Vehicles and 17% will be Non—Program Vehicles for the 2004 model year. The original terms
of the VSA will be effective beginning with the 2005 model year. Under the terms of the VSA, Dollar and Thrifty will advertise and
promote DaimlerChrysler products exclusively, and the Company will receive promotional payments from DaimlerChrysler for each
model year. Purchases of revenue—earning vehicles from DaimlerChrysler were $3,026,386,000, $2,820,480,000 and $2,499,355,000
during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Vehicle acquisition terms provide for guaranteed residual values in the U.S. or buybacks in Canada on the majority of vehicles,
under specified conditions, Guaranteed residual and buyback payments provide the Company sufficient proceeds on disposition of
revenue-earning vehicles to realize the carrying value of these vehicles. Payments received are included in proceeds from sales of
revenue-earning vehicles and applied against the related receivables reflected in Due from DaimlerChrysler within Receivables, net on
the balance sheet (Note 5). Additionally, the Company receives payments and other incentives primarily related to the disposal of
revenue-earning vehicles, which amounts have been reflected as offsets to direct vehicle and operating expense in the consolidated
statements of income. Promotional payments under the VSA received through September 30, 2003 have been amortized on a straight-
line basis over the respective model year to which the promotional payments relate and were recorded in Due from DaimlerChrysler as
earned. As discussed in Note 3, the Company implemented the provisions of EITF 02-16 effective with the amendment to the VSA in
October 2003, and began recognizing these promotional payments as a reduction of the cost of the vehicles when acquired. The
Company also receives interest reimbursement for Program Vehicles while at auction and for certain delivery related interest costs,
which amounts are reflected as offsets in interest expense, net. The aggregate amount of payments received from DaimlerChrysler for
guaranteed residual value program payments, promotional payments, interest reimbursement and other incentives totaled
$732,320,000, $559.696,000 and $474,602,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, of which a substantial portion of the payments
relate to the Company’s guaranteed residual value program and are included in Due from DaimlerChrysler within Receivables, net on
the consolidated balance sheet. Buyback payments received from the Canadian subsidiary of DaimlerChrysler were $107,048,000,
880,197,000 and $78,749,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and are included in Due from DaimlerChrysler within
Receivables, net on the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company acquires some vehicles from other manufacturers, the majority of which are subject to guaranteed buyback at
established values by the manufacturers. Rent expense for vehicles leased from other vehicle manufacturers and third parties under
operating leases was $8,856,000, $8,121,000 and $20,905,000 for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and is included in vehicle
depreciation and lease charges, net. Amounts due over the next three years for vehicles under operating leases with terms greater than
one year total $7,172,000.
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7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Major classes of property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31, 2003 2002

{In Thousands)

Land $ 14,272 $ 13,748

Buildings and improvements 18,559 17,543

Furniture and equipment 64,038 58,278

Leasehold improvements 83,938 77,938

Construction in progress 8,613 5,872

189,420 173,379

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (91,481) (81,198)
$ 97,939 $ 92,181

8. SCFTWARE AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31, 2003 2002

(In Thousands)

Software and other intangible assets $ 34,629 $ 31,064

Less accumulared amortization (20,042) (15,683)
$ 14,587 $ 15,381

The aggregate amortization expense recognized for software and other intangible assets was $5,637,000, $4,381,000 and
$3,251,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The estimated aggregate amortization expense for

each of the next five years is as follows: $4,900,000, $3,700,000, $3,100,000, $1,700,000 and $700,000.

9. GOODWILL

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, are as follows:

December 31, 2003 2002
(In Thousands)
Beginning balance $165,327 $165,059
Goodwill through acquisitions during year 37,802 255
Effect of change in rates used for foreign currency translation 732 13
Ending Balance $203,861 $165,327
The following table provides the comparable effects of adoption of SFAS No. 142:
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands Except Per Share Data)
Reported net income $ 19,840 $46,831 $ 13,837
Add back: goodwill amortization, net of income tax expense — — 5,577
Adjusted net income $ 19,840 $46,831 $ 19,414
Basic earnings per share:
Reported net income $ 081 $ 193 $ 057
Goodwill amortization, net of income tax expense — — 0.23
Adjusted net income $ 081 $ 193 $ 0.80
Diluted earnings per share:
Reported net income $ 078 $ 188 $ 057
Goodwill amortization, net of income tax expense — — 0.23
Adjusted net income $ 078 $ 1.88 $§ 080
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10. VERHICLE DEBT AND C3LIGATIONS

Vehicle debt and obligations consist of the following:

December 31, 2003 2002
(In Thousands)

Asset backed notes:

2003 Series notes $ 375,000 $ —
2002 Series notes 350,000 350,000
2001 Series notes 350,000 350,000
1999 Series notes 206,250 250,000
1997 Series notes 200,000 429,614
1,481,250 1,379,614

Discounts on asset backed notes 62) (149)
Asset backed notes, net of discount 1,481,188 1,379,465
Conduit Facility 275,000 250,000
Commercial paper, net of discount of $555 and $586 354,741 308,048
Other vehicle debt 244,539 227,834
Limited partner interest in limited partnership 86,694 58,956
Total vehicle debt and obligations $2,442,162 $2,224,303

Asset Backed Notes are comprised of rental car asset backed notes issued by RCFC in March 2003 (the “2003 Series notes”),
June 2002 (the “2002 Series notes”), March 2001 (the “2001 Series notes”), April 1999 (the “1999 Series notes”) and December 1997
(the “1997 Series notes”).

The 2003 Series notes are floating rate notes that were converted to a fixed rate of 3.64% by entering into an interest rate swap
agreement (Note 11} in conjunction with the issuance of the notes.

The 2002 Series notes are floating rate notes with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.64% (1.79% and 2.07% at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively). In conjunction with the issuance of the 2002 Series notes, the Company entered into an interest rate
swap agreement {Note 11) to convert one-half of this floating rate debt to a fixed rate of 4.77%.

The 2001 Series notes are floating rate notes that were converted to a fixed rate of 6.04% by entering into an interest rate swap
agreement (Note 11} in conjunction with the issuance of the notes.

The 1999 Series notes are comprised of fixed rate notes, with rates ranging from 5.9% to 7.1%.

The 1997 Series notes are comprised of $188,8635,000 and $396,210,000 of fixed rate notes outstanding at the end of 2003 and
2002, respectively, with rates ranging from 6.60% to 6.70% and $11,135,000 and $33,404,000 of floating rate notes outstanding at
the end of 2003 and 2002, respectively, with interest rates of LIBOR plus 1.05% (2.21% at December 31, 2003) and LIBOR plus
0.95% to LIBOR plus 1.05% (2.39% to 2.49% at December 31, 2002).

The assets of RCFC, including revenue—earning vehicles related to the asset backed notes, restricted cash and investments, and
certain receivables related to revenue—earning vehicles, are available to satisfy the claims of its creditors. In 2002, letters of credit issued
on behalf of DaimlerChrysler also served as collateral for the asset backed notes. These letters of credit expired on December 23, 2002
and were replaced with letters of credit under the Revolving Credit Facility. Dollar and Thrifty lease vehicles from RCFC under the
terms of a master lease and servicing agreement. The asset backed note indentures also provide for additional credic enhancement
through over collateralization of the vehicle fleet, cash or other letters of credit and maintenance of a liquidity reserve. RCFC is in com-
pliance with the terms of the indentures.

The asset backed notes mature from 2004 through 2007 and are generally subject to repurchase on any payment date subject to
a prepayment penalty.

Conduit Facility — In March 2003, a participating bank increased its commitment in the asset backed Variable Funding Note
Purchase Facility (the “Conduit”) increasing the existing $250,000,000 facility to $275,000,000. In December 2003, the Conduit was
extended to April 1, 2004. Effective April 1, 2004, the Conduit is expected to be renewed for a 364-day period. Proceeds are used for
financing of vehicle purchases and for periodic refinancing of asset backed notes. The Conduit generally bears interest ar marketr—based
commercial paper rates (1.57% and 1.68% at December 31, 2003 and 2002). The Company had $275,000,000 and $250,000,000
ourtstanding under the Conduit at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Commercial Paper represents borrowings under a $554,000,000 Commercial Paper Program as a part of the existing asset
backed note program. Proceeds are used for financing of vehicle purchases and for periodic refinancing of asset backed notes.
Concurrently with the establishment of the Commercial Paper Program, DTFC also entered into a 364—day, $485,000,000 Liquidity
Facility to support the Commercial Paper Program. The Commercial Paper Program is expected to be renewed for a 364-day period
effective April 1, 2004, backed by a renewal of the Liquidity Facility. The Liquidity Facility provides the Commercial Paper Program
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with an alternative source of funding if DTFC is unable to refinance maturing commercial paper by issuing new commercial paper.
Commercial paper bears interest at rates ranging from 1.14% to 1.16% at December 31, 2003 and 1.43% to 1.47% at December 31,
2002 and matures within 45 days of December 31, 2003.

Other Vebicle Debr includes various lines of credit that are collateralized by the related vehicles, including up to $290,000,000
from vehicle manufacturers at December 31, 2003, and $111,300,000 in capacity from U.S. and Canadian banks at December 31,
2003. These lines of credit bear interest at varying rates based on LIBOR, prime or commercial paper rates. The weighted average
variable interest rate for these lines of credit was 3.80% and 4.67% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These lines of credit
are primarily renewable annually.

Limited Partner Interest in Limited Partnership — DTG Canada has a partnership agreement (the “Partnership Agreement”)
with an unrelated bank’s conduit (the “Limited Partner”). This transaction included the creation of a limited partnership (TCL Funding
Limited Partnership, the “Partnership”). DTG Canada is the General Partner in the Partnership. The Partnership Agreement has a
five—year term, subject to extension, with the purpose to purchase, own, lease and rent vehicles throughout Canada. The Limited
Partner has committed to funding approximately CND$200,000,000 (approximately US$154,280,000 at December 31, 2003) to the
Partnership, which is funded through issuance and sale of notes in the Canadian commercial paper market.

DTG Canada, as General Partner, is allocated the remainder of the partnership net income after distribution of the income share
of the Limited Partner, which amounted to $3,011,000, $1,872,000 and $2,863,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively, and is included in interest expense. Due to the nature of the relationship between DTG Canada and the
Partnership, the accounts of the Partnership are appropriately consolidated with the Company. The Partnership Agreement requires the
maintenance of certain letters of credit and contains various restrictive covenants. DTG Canada was in compliance with all such
covenants and requirements at December 31, 2003.

Expected repayments of vehicle debt and obligations outstanding at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2004 2005 2006 2007

Asset backed notes $ 269,036 $603,881 $295,833 $312,500
Conduit Facility 275,000 — — —
Commercial paper 355,296 — — —
Other vehicle debt 244,539 — — —
Limited partner interest 86,694 — — —
Toral $1,230,565 $603,881 $295,833 $312,500

REvoLvING CREDIT FACILITY., The Company has a five-year, $215,000,000 Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the
“Revolver”) that expires August 2005. The Revolver originally provided sublimits up to $190,000,000 for letters of credit and up to
$70,000,000 for working capital borrowings. In December 2002, the Company amended the Revolver to increase the sublimit for
letters of credit from $190 million to $215 million, while retaining the $70 million sublimit on working capital borrowings and the
totat Revolver commitment of $215 million. In March 2003, the Company completed an amendment of the Revolver affecting a
financial covenant, which also included limiting expenditures for non-vehicle capital assets and franchisee acquisitions if certain
covenant levels are not maintained. In July 2003, the Company completed another amendment of the Revolver, which among other
provisions, allowed the Company to retain the higher limitation for franchisee acquisitions during 2003 (Note 21). As of December 31,
2003, the Company is required to pay a 0.375% commitment fee on the unused available line, a 2.00% letter of credit fee on the
aggregate amount of outstanding letters of credit and a 0.125% letter of credit issuance fee. Interest rates on loans under the Revolver
are, at the option of the Company, based on the prime, federal funds or Eurodollar rates and are payable quarterly. The Revolver is
collateralized by a first priority lien on substantially all material non-vehicle assets of the Company. The Revolver contains various
restrictive covenants, including maintenance of certain financial ratios consisting of minimum net worth, adjusted EBITDA, fixed
charge, leverage and interest coverage ratios and the restriction of cash dividends and share repurchases. The Company is in compliance
with all covenants. The Company had letters of credit of $159,832,000 and $168,168,000 and no working capital borrowings out-
standing under the Revolver at December 51, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

11, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to market risks, such as changes in interest rates. Consequently, the Company manages the financial
exposure as part of its risk management program, by striving to reduce the potentially adverse effects that the potential volatility of
the financial markets may have on the Company’s operating results. In 2001, the Company began entering into interest rate swap
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agreements, in conjunction with each related new asset backed note issuance in 2001 through 2003, to convert variable interest rates on
a total of $900 million in asset backed notes to fixed interest rates. These swaps, which have termination dates through May 2007,
constitute cash flow hedges and satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting. The Company reflects these swaps in its statement of financial
position as a liability at fair market value, which was approximately $33,087,000 and $41,988,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The Company recorded the related income of $5,430,000 for 2003 and related losses of $18,855,000 and $6,758,000 in
2002 and 2001, respectively, which is net of income taxes, in comprehensive income on the consolidated statement of stockholders’
equity. Deferred gains and losses are recognized in earnings as an adjustment to interest expense over the same period in which the relar-
ed interest payments being hedged are recognized to earnings. Based on projected market interest rates, the Company estimates the net
amount of approximately $15,128,000 of the existing deferred loss at December 31, 2003 is expected to be reclassified to the consoli-
dated statements of income within the next twelve months.

12, STOCKHOLDERS’ RIGHTS PLAN

On July 23, 1998, the Company adopted a stockholders’ rights plan. The rights were issued on August 3, 1998, to stockholders
of record on that date, and will expire on August 3, 2008, unless earlier redeemed, exchanged or amended by the Board of Directors.

The plan provides for the issuance of one right for each outstanding share of the Company’s common stock. Upon the acquisi-
tion by a person or group of 15% or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock, the rights generally will become exercisable
and allow the stockholder, other than the acquiring person or group, to acquire common stock at a discounted price.

The plan also includes an exchange option after the rights become exercisable. The Board of Directors may effect an exchange of
part or all of the rights, other than rights that have become void, for shares of the Company’s common stock for each right. The Board
of Directors may redeem all rights for $.01 per right, generally at any time prior to the rights becoming exercisable.

The issuance of the rights had no dilutive effect on the number of common shares outstanding and did not affect earnings per share.

13. ZARNINGS PER SHARE

The computation of weighted average common and common equivalent shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted EPS is
shown below:

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001

(In Thousands Except Share and Per Share Data)

Net Income $ 19,840 $ 46,831 $ 13,837
Basic EPS:

Weighted average common shares 24,537,787 24,274,985 24,103,838
Basic EPS $ 0.81 $ 1.93 $ 0.57
Diluted EPS:

Weighted average common shares 24,537,787 24,274,985 24,103,838

Shares contingently issuable:

Stock options 325,686 287,212 195,197
Performance awards 265,605 120,000 —
Shares held for compensation plans 197,179 164,759 157,205
Director compensation shares deferred - 67,324 47,425 31,303
Shares applicable to diluted 25,393,581 24,894,381 24,487,543
Diluted EPS $ 0.78 $ 1.88 $ 0.57

Options to purchase 107,900, 1,048,300 and 2,136,046 shares of common stock were outstanding at December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price was
greater than the average market price of the common shares.
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14, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

ExipLOYEE BENEFIT Prans. The Company sponsors a retirement savings plan that incorporates the salary reduction provisions
of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and covers substantially all employees of the Company meeting specific age and length
of service requirements. Effective January 1, 2002, the Company matched 100% up to 6% of the employee’s eligible compensation,
subject to statutory limitations, of which 50% is in cash and 50% is in company stock and continued this matching level for 2003. The
Company stock match is immediately available for transfer or sale at the employee’s discretion. Employee contributions were matched
in cash by the Company to the extent of 75% up to 6% of the employee’s eligible compensation in 2001. Contributions expensed by
the Company totaled $3,295,000, $4,066,000 and $2,933,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Included in accrued liabilities at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is $2,751,000 and $2,038,000, respectively, for employee health
claims, which are self-insured by the Company. The accrual includes amounts for incurred and incurred but not reported claims.

The Company has bonus and profit sharing plans for all employees based on company performance. Expense related to these
plans was $7,833,000 and $14,835,000 in 2003 and 2002, respectively. No expense was recorded in 2001 relating to these plans.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND RETIREMENT PLANS. The Company has deferred compensation and retirement plans
providing key executives with the opportunity to defer compensation, including related investment income. Under the deferred com-
pensation plan, the Company contributes up to 7% of participant cash compensation. Participants become fully vested under both the
deferred compensation and retirement plans after five years of service. The total of participant deferrals in the deferred compensation
and retirement plans, which are reflected in accrued liabilities, was $25,918,000 and $18,336,000 as of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Expense related to these plans totaled $2,738,000, $2,166,000 and $735,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

LoNG-TerM INCENTIVE PLAN. The Company has a long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) for employees and non-employee
directors under which the Human Resources and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company is authorized
to provide for grants in the form of nonqualified stock options, incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
performance share awards and other stock-based incentive awards. The exercise prices for nonqualified stock options are equal to the
fair market value of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant, except for the initial grant, which was made at the initial public
offering price. The options vest in three equal annual installments commencing on the first anniversary of the grant date and have a
term not exceeding ten years from the date of grant. In May 2000, an additional 2,400,000 shares were approved by the shareholders
for issuance under the LTIP. At December 31, 2003, the Company’s common stock outstanding authorized for issuance under the LTIP
was 4,919,695 shares, with a share addition provision that allows for the number of shares reserved to increase by 10% of any newly
issued shares.

Performance share awards are granted to Company officers and certain key employees. The awards granted in 2003 established a
target number of shares that vest three years from the grant date. The performance share awards grant for 2002 (2002 Grant”) also
established a target number of shares but vest in three equal annual installments commencing on the first anniversary of the grant date.
The number of performance shares ultimately earned is expected to range from zero to 200% of the target award, depending on the
level of corporate performance each year. Any performance share installments not earned as of a given anniversary date are forfeited.
Performance shares earned are delivered based upon vesting of the grant, provided the grantee is then employed by the Company.
Values of the performance shares earned will be recognized as compensation expense over the period the shares are earned. In 2003,
non-employee directors were granted 25,929 restricted shares which generally vested on December 31, 2003. The Company recognized
compensation costs of $2,177,000 and $2,538,000 in 2003 and 2002, respectively, for performance share and restricted stock awards.
During 2001, there were no performance shares earned and, thus, no compensation expense recognized. On January 31, 2004 and
February 14, 2003, approximately two-thirds of the 2002 Grant of performance shares earned in 2002, net of forfeitures totaling
approximately 49,000 and 40,000 shares vested, respectively, and were settled through the issuance of common stock totaling approxi-
mately $1,200,000 and $700,000, respectively. Substantially all of these shares were directed to the deferred compensation plan by the
Company for the benefit of the employees.
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The status of the Company’s stock option plan is summarized below:

Number of Shares Weighted-Average
(In Thousands) Exercise Price
OQUTSTANDING AT DECEMBER 31, 2000 2,675 $18.42
Granrted 706 12.29
Exercised (102) 17.38
Canceled (71) 18.35
QUTSTANDING AT DECEMBER 31, 2001 3,208 17.10
Granted 40 23.20
Exercised (206) 16.95
Canceled (17) 16.76
OUTSTANDING AT DECEMBER 31, 2002 3,025 17.20
Granted — —
Exercised (447) 16.60
Canceled (13) 12.86
OUTSTANDING AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 2,565 $17.33
OPTIONS EXERCISABLE AT:
December 31, 2003 2,354 $17.85
December 31, 2002 2,345 $17.96
December 31, 2001 1,948 $18.21

ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION. The following table summarizes information regarding fixed stock
options that were outstanding at December 31, 2003:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-Average Remaining
Number Outstanding Contractual Life Weighted-Average Number Exercisable Weighted-Average
Range of Exercise Prices (In Thousands) (In Years) Exercise Price (In Thousands) Exercise Price
$10.50 - $11.45 791 7.02 $11.19 581 $11.10
$17.6875 - $19.6875 823 6.38 19.23 823 19.23
$20.50 - $23.90 951 4.37 20.78 950 20.78
$10.50 - $23.90 2,565 5.83 $17.33 2,354 $17.85

Under certain circumstances, including a change of control of DTG, the options outstanding would be exercisable immediately.

15, SEARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On July 30, 2003, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had authorized a stock repurchase program which
allows the repurchase of up to $30 million of the Company’s stock over the next two years in the open market or in privately
negotiated transactions. On August 11, 2003, the Company began repurchasing shares and repurchased 236,000 shares during the
year ended December 31, 2003 at an average price of $24.62 per share, totaling $5,809,000.
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Income tax expense consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands)
Current:
Federal $ — $ (93,989) $(2,737)
State and local (6,219) (63) 1,745
Foreign 295 345 562
(5,924) (93,707) (430)
Deferred:
Federal 19,648 104,750 12,637
State and local 3,681 19,625 173
B3 1435 12810
$ 17,405 $ 30,668 $12,380

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following;
December 31, 2003 2002

(In Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Public liability and property damage $ 18,994 $ 13,901
Allowance for doubtful accounts and notes receivable 3,539 6,492
Other accrued liabilities 31,054 23,154
Federal and state NOL credits and carryforwards 272,427 67.358
Interest rate swap 12,904 16,376
Canadian NOL carryforwards 7,928 4,092
Canadian depreciation 1,321 1,657
Other Canadian temporary differences 3,429 3,609
351,596 136,639
Valuation allowance (12,678) (9,358)
Total $338,918 $127,281
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation $499,659 $256,473
Other 182 5,445
Toral $499,841 $261,918

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards available in certain states to offset future state taxable income. At
December 31, 2003, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $700,000,000 available to
offset future taxable income in the U.S., which expire beginning in 2022 through 2023. At December 31, 2003, DTG
Canada has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $21,785,000 available to offset future taxable income in
Canada, which expire beginning in 2008 through 2010. Valuation allowances have been established for the total estimated
future tax effect of the Canadian net operating losses and other deferred tax assets.
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The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the maximum U.S. statutory income tax rate. The following summary
reconciles taxes at che maximum U.S. statutory rate with recorded taxes:

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(Amotnts in Thousands) Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Tax expense computed at the

maximum U.S. statutory rate $ 13,036 35.0% $27,125 35.0% $ 9,176 35.0%
Difference resulting from:
Goodwill amortization — — — — 1,717 6.6
State and local taxes, net of
federal income tax benefit 1,755 4.7 3,110 4.0 1,247 4.8

Foreign losses 1,377 3.7 — — 882 3.3

Foreign taxes 295 0.8 345 0.5 562 2.1

Other 942 2.5 88 0.1 (1,204) (4.6)
Total $17,405 46.7% $30,668 39.6% $12,380 47.2%

17. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK AND FAIR VALUE INFORMATICON

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of restricted cash
and investments and trade receivables. The Company limits its exposure on restricted cash and investments by investing in highly rated
funds. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the large number of customers comprising the
Company’s customer base and their dispersion across different geographic areas.

The following estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using available market infor-
mation and valuation methodologies.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and Investments, Receivables, Accounts Payable, Accrued Liabilities and
Public Liability and Property Damage — The carrying amounts of these items are a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

Vehicle Debt and Obligations — The fair value of floating-rate debt, which includes amounts subject to an interest rate swap from
floating-rate debt to fixed-rate debt, approximates the carrying value as these instruments are at current market interest rates. At December
31, 2003, the fair value of the asset backed notes with fixed interest rates was greater than the carrying value by approximately $15,795,000.

Letters of Credit — The estimated fair value of these items was $608,000 and $302,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation Risk — A portion of the Company’s debt is denominated in Canadian dollars, thus, its carrying
value is impacted by exchange rate fluctuations. However, this foreign currency risk is mitigated by the underlying collateral, which is
represented by the Canadian fleet.

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

CONCESSIONS AND OPERATING LEASES. The Company has certain concession agreements principally with airports throughout
the United States and Canada. Typically, these agreements provide airport terminal counter space in return for a minimum rent. In
many cases, the Company’s subsidiaries are also obligated to pay insurance and maintenance costs and additional rents generally based
on revenues earned at the locatdon. Certain of the airport locations are operated by franchisees who are obligated to make the required
rent and concession fee payments under the terms of their franchise arrangements with the Company’s subsidiaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries operate from various leased premises under operating leases with terms up to 25 years. Some of the
leases contain renewal options.

Expenses incurred under operating leases and concessions were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands)
Rent $ 29,280 $25,157 $25,386
Concession expenses:
Minimum fees 44,942 43,799 37,601
Contingent fees 32,914 23,752 24,093
107,136 92,708 87,080
Less sublease rental income (1,440) (1,687) (1,617)
Toral $105,696 $91,021 $85,463
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Future minimum rentals and fees under noncancelable operating leases and the Company’s obligations for minimum airport con-
cession fees at December 31, 2003 are presented in the following table. Concession fees-franchisee locations presented are required to be
paid by franchisees under terms of sublease agreements.

Concession Fees

Company-Owned Franchisee Operating

(In Thousands) Stores Locations Leases Total

2004 $ 43,784 $ 44 $ 30,962 $ 74,790
2005 41,832 22 26,131 67,985
2006 37,212 23 22,419 59,654
2007 33,057 6 20,583 53,646
2008 22,576 —_ 17,438 40,014
Thereafter 83,809 — 53,838 137,647

262,270 95 171,371 433,736
Less sublease rental income — — (2,805) (2,805)
$262,270 $95 $168,566 $430,931

PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY D'AMAGE. The Company continues to evaluate its insurance coverages on the majority of its
operations and is self-insured for public liability and property damage claims up to certain policy limits resuming in 2002 and increas-
ing its self-insured levels in 2003. Additionally, in 2003, the Company began retaining the risk of loss on a portion of the supplemental
liability insurance (“SLI”) policies sold to vehicle rental customers. For 2001, the majority of the Company’s operations had first dollar
coverage from insurance cartiers, subject to certain policy limits, for public liability and property damage claims. Prior to this insurance
coverage, the Company was self-insured or had policy deductibles up to certain limits. The accrual for public liability and property
damage includes amounts for incurred and incurred but not reported losses. Such liabilities are necessarily based on actuarially deter-
mined estimates and management believes that the amounts accrued are adequate. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, these amounts
have been discounted at 2.4% and 2.0%, (assumed risk free rate), respectively, based upon the actuarially determined estimated timing
of payments to be made in future years. Discounting resulted in reducing the accrual for public liability and property damage by
$2,156,000 and $1,244,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Estimated future payments of public liability and property
damage as of December 31, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

2004 $20,878
2005 12,761
2006 8,775
2007 6,025
2008 4,054
Thereafter 5,957
Aggregate undiscounted public liability and property damage 58,450
Effect of discounting (2,156)

$56,294

CONTINGENCIES. Various claims and legal proceedings have been asserted or instituted against the Company, including some pur-
porting to be class actions, and some which demand large monetary damages or other relief which could result in significant expendi-
tures. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and the outcome of individual matters is not prediceable with assurance. The
Company is also subject to potential liabilitv related to environmental matters. The Company establishes reserves for litigation and
environmental matters when the loss is probable and reasonably estimable. It is reasonably possible that the final resolution of some of
these matters may require the Company to make expenditures, in excess of established reserves, over an extended period of time and in
a range of amounts that cannot be reasonably estimated. The term “reasonably possible” is used herein to mean that the chance of a
future transaction or event occurring is more than remote but less than likely. Although the final resolution of any such matters could
have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated operating results for the particular reporting period in which an adjustment of the
estimated liability is recorded, the Company believes that any resulting liability should not materially affect its consolidated financial
position.
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O71HeR. The Company is party to a data processing services agreement which requires payments totaling $5,500,000 in 2004 and
$5,000,000 annually from 2005 through 2010. The Company also has a telecommunications contract which will require payments
totaling $1,800,000 for both 2004 and 2005. Additionally, the Company has sofeware maintenance agreements which require payments
totaling $1,290,000 in 2004, $681,000 in 2005 and $284,000 in 2006.

In addition to the letters of credit described in Note 10, the Company had letters of credit totaling $6,082,000 and $3,021,000
at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company may also provide guarantees on behalf of franchisees to support compli-
ance with airport concession bids. Non-performance of the obligation by the franchisee would trigger the obligation of the Company.
As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the maximum future payments under these guarantees are $189,000 and $995,000, respectively,
with expirations through 2005 and 2003, respectively. As of December 31, 2003, the Company has not recognized a liability for guar-
antees issued or modified after December 31, 2002, which totaled $102,000 due to the absence of any fair value at inception of the
guarantee and the likelihood of a triggering event is not probable.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had outstanding vehicle purchase commitments of approximately $1,107,725,000.

9. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company implemented a new corporate operating structure. This new structure realigned the
Company from a brand structure to a functional structure combining the management of operations and administrative functions for
both the Dollar and Thrifty brands. Due to the realignment, the Company no longer reports Dollar and Thrifty as operating segments.
Consistent with the new structure, management makes business and operating decisions on an overall company basis. Financial results
are no longer available by brand.

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following amounts relating to geographic locations:

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands)
Revenues:
United States $1,162,555 $1,080,734 $1,000,176
Foreign countries 65,331 52,460 49,994
$1,227,886 $1,133,194 $1,050,170
Long-lived assets: - T -
United States $ 306,162 $ 268,866 $ 278,316
Foreign countries 10,225 4,023 3,882
$ 316,387 $ 272,889 $ 282,198

Revenues are attributed to geographic regions based on the location of the transaction. Long-lived assets include property and
equipment, software and other intangible assets and goodwill.
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20, SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITZED)

A summary of the quarterly operating results during 2003 and 2002 follows:

Basic Diluted
Income (Loss) Before Earnings (Loss) Earnings (Loss)
Revenues Operating Income Income Taxes Net Income (Loss) Per Share Per Share
(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)
2003
First quarter $ 250,483 $ 20,980 $ 1,711 $ 594 $0.02 $0.02
Second quarter 304,099 34,682 12,174 6,329 0.26 0.25
Third quarter 370,451 59,838 35,073 21,364 0.87 0.84
Fourth quarter 302,853 11,041 (11,713) (8,447) {0.34) (0.33)
Total year $1,227,886 $126,541 $ 37,245 $19,840 $0.81 $0.78
2002
First quarter $ 242,757 $ 40,902 $ 21,056 $12,133 $0.50 $ 0.49
Second quarter 302,468 52,199 28,767 17,540 0.72 0.70
Third quarter 337,668 61,086 34,020 21,207 0.87 0.85
Fourth quarter 250,301 16,739 (6,344) (4,049) (0.17) (0.16)
Total year 31,133,194 $170,926 $ 77,499 $ 46,831 $1.93 $1.88

Operating income in the table above represents pretax income before interest.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company commenced implementation of EITF 02-16 for accounting for
purchase and promotion payments received from its primary vehicle supplier. The application of this new accounting method
resulted in a $22,122,000 reduction of fourth quarter pretax results (Note 3).

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company announced its new corporate operating structure, which included sev-
erance costs of approximately $800,000 for personnel in locations where operations would cease, fees relating to amending the
Company’s Revolving Credit Facility of $500,000 and additional costs for communication with franchisees and corporate oper-
ations and training for employees relating to realignment of responsibilities which approximates $500,000. Additionally, as a
result of the change in structure, the Company recorded a $1,929,000 write-off of certain software, which will not be utilized.

21, SUBSEQUIENT EVENTS

On March 5, 2004, the Company received bank consent to further reduce covenant restrictions in the Revolving Credit Facility
relating to franchisee acquisitions in order to assist the Company with its corporate growth strategy.

Through March 12, 2004, the Company has acquired or reached agreement to acquire its franchise operations in Aspen,
Greensboro, Raleigh-Durham, Ft. Myers and Vancouver, Canada.
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DOLLAR THRIFTY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
LI R
Schedule i

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at Additions Balance ar
Beginning Charged 10 End of
Year ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 of Year Income Deductions Year
(In Thousands)
2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts $19,529 $ 4,729 $(11,495) $12,763
Public liability and property damage $39,506 $37,745 $ (20,957) $56,294
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets $ 9,358 $ 3,320 $ — $12,678
2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts $24,255 $ 8,258 $ (12,984) $19,529
Public liability and property damage $23,139 $34,548 $ (18,181) $39,506
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets $10,027 $ (669) $ — $ 9,358
2001
Allowance for doubtful accounts $25,428 $21,790 $ (22,963) $24,255
Public liability and property damage $35,369 $ 4,868 $ (17,098) $23,139
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets $ 9,955 $ 72 $ — $10,027

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There were no changes in accountants or disagreements on matters related to accounting or financial disclosure during the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the
Company in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. An evaluation was carried out under the
supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer (‘CEO”) and Chief
Financial Officer (“CFQ”), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO
have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

b} Changes in internal controls
Effective with the corporate reorganization on January 1, 2003, the Company implemented changes to certain internal controls

and processes. The Company does not believe there are any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal controls due to
these changes; however, the Company will continue to monitor internal controls to ensure their effectiveness.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Reference is made to the information appearing under the captions “Biographical Information Regarding Director Nominees and
Named Executive Officers”, “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Code of Ethics” in the Company’s
definitive Proxy Statement which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated by the SEC not later than 120 days after the
end of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Reference is made to the information appearing under the caprions “Independence, Meetings, Committees and Compensation of
the Board of Directors - Compensation,” and “Executive Compensation” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement which will be
filed pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated by the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003, and is incotporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Reference is made to the information appearing under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors,
Director Nominees and Executive Officers” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement which will be filed pursuant to Regulation
14A promulgated by the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Reference is made to the information appearing under “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Company’s defin-
itive Proxy Statement which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated by the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of
the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Reference is made to the information appearing under “Independent Auditors — Audit and Non-Audit Fees” in the Company’s
definitive Proxy Statement which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated by the SEC not later than 120 days after the
end of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Documents filed as a part of this report

(N All Financial Statements. The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitted as a separate section herein under Part Il, Item 8 - Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.

2) Financial Statement Schedules. Schedule |l - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts - Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is set forth under Part I}, ltem 8 -
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the information is shown in the financial statements
or notes thereto.

(3) Index of Exhibits

Exhibit

No. Descriptian

31 Certificate of Incorporation of DTG, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, Registration No. 333-39661,
which became effective December 16, 1997*

3.2 By-Laws of DTG, as amended and restated, which were approved by the DTG Board of Directors on September 25, 2003 and became effective October 1, 2003, filed
as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, Commission File No, 1-13647*

41 Form of Certificate of Common Stock, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, Registration No. 333-39661,
which became effective December 16, 1997~

4.2 Base Indenture dated as of December 13, 1995 between Thrifty Car Rental Finance Corporation and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with
DTG's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, Registration No. 333-39661, which became effective December 16, 1997*

4.7 Form of Series 1997-1 Supplement to Base Indenture between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, Registration No. 333-39661, which became effective December 16, 1997*

48 Form of Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement among DTG, Dollar, Thrifty and Rental Car Finance Corp., filed as the same numbered exhibit with
DTG'’s Registration Staterment on Form S-1, as amended, Registration No. 333-39661, which became effective December 16, 1997~

410 Amended and Restated Master Collateral Agency Agreement dated as of December 23, 1997 among DTG, Rental Car Finance Corp., Thrifty, Dollar and Bankers Trust
Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 8-K, filed March 16, 1998, Commission File No. 1-13647*

413 Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of March 4, 1998 among DTG, Dollar, Thrifty and Rental Car Finance Corp., filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Farm 8-K, filed March 16, 1898, Commission File No. 1-13647*

414 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of March 4, 1998 among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp. and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 8-K, filed March 16, 1998, Commission File No. 1-13647*

415 Liquidity Agreement dated as of March 4, 1998 among Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., Certain Financial Institutions and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 8-K, filed March 16, 1998, Commission File No. 1-13647*

4.16 Depositary Agreement dated as of March 4, 1998 between Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Form 8-K, filed March 16, 1998, Commission File No. 1-13647*

417 Collateral Agreement dated as of March 4, 1998 among Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the
same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 8-K, filed March 16, 1398, Commission File No. 1-13647*

418 Dealer Agreement dated as of March 4, 1998 among Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., DTG, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation and Chase Securities Inc., filed as the
same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 8-K, filed March 16, 1998, Commission File No. 1-13647*

419 Rights Agreement (including a Form of Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock as Exhibit A thereto, a Form of Right Certificate as
Exhibit B thereto and @ Summary of Rights to Purchase Preferred Stock as Exhibit C thereto) dated as of July 23, 1998 between DTG and Harris Trust and Savings
Bank, as Rights Agent, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 8-K, filed July 24, 1998, Commission File No. 1-13647~

422 Series 1999-1 Supplement to Base Indenture dated as of April 29, 1999 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered
exhibit with DTG's Form 8-K, filed May 18, 1993, Commission File No. 1-13647*

423 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of April 29, 1999 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation and Chase Securities Inc., filed
as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 8-K, filed May 18, 1999, Commission File No. 1-13647*

424 Enhancement Letter of Credit Application and Agreement dated April 29, 1999 among Dollar, Thrifty, DTG, Renta! Car Finance Corp. and Credit Suisse First Boston,
filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 8-K, filed May 18, 1999, Commission File No. 1-13647*

427 Amendment No. 3 to Liquidity Agreement dated as of February 18, 2000 among Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., certain financial institutions, as the Liguidity Lenders,

and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2000, filed May 10, 2000,
Commission File No. 1-13647*

page. 52




Exhibit
No.

Description

4.32

433

434

435

4.36

4.39

44

4.42

443

4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

4.50

451

4.52

453

4.55

4.56

4.57

Amendment No. 2 to Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of November 9, 2000 among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollar, Thrifty and DTG,
filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, filed March 13, 2001, Commission File No, 1-13647~
Amendment No. 3 to Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of December 14, 2000 among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollar, Thrifty and DTG,
filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, fited March 13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Series 2000-1 Supplement to Base Indenture dated as of December 15, 2000 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, filed March 13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of December 15, 2000 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG, the Conduit Purchasers from time to time party thereto, the
Committed Purchasers from time to time party thereto, the Managing Agents from time to time party thereto and Bank One, NA as Administrative Agent, filed as the
same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, filed March 13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Enhancement Letter of Credit Application and Agreement dated as of December 15, 2000 among Dollar, Thrifty, DTG, Rental Car Finance Corp. and Credit Suisse First
Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, filed March 13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*
Amendment No. 4 to Liquidity Agreement dated as of February 28, 2001 amang Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., certain financial institutions, as the Liquidity Lenders,
and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2001, filed May 11, 2001,
Commission File No. 1-13647*

Series 2001-1 Supplement to Base Indenture dated as of March 6, 2001 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered
exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2001, filed May 11, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of March 6, 2001 amang DTG, Doltar, Thrifty and Rentat Car Finance Corp., filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2001, filed May 11, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Addendum to the Amended and Restated Master Collateral Agency Agreement dated as of March 6, 2001 among DTG, Rental Car Finance Corp., Thrifty, Dollar and
Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2001, filed May 11, 2001, Commission
File No. 1-13647*

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of March 6, 2001 among Rental Car Finance Corp., OTG, Deutsche Banc Alex, Brown, JP Morgan Chase & Co., Salomon Smith
Barney and Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2001, filed
May 11, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Enhancement Letter of Credit Application and Agreement dated as of March 6, 2001 among Dollar, Thrifty, DTG, Rental Car Finance Corp. and Credit Suisse First
Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit wita DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2001, filed May 11, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*
Master Exchange and Trust Agreement dated as of July 23, 2001 among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollar, Thrifty, Chicago Deferred Exchange Corporation, VEXCO,
LLC and The Chicago Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2001, filed November
13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Collateral Assignment of Exchange Agreement dated as of July 23, 2001 by and among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollar, Thrifty and Bankers Trust Company, filed as
the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2001, filed November 3, 2001, Commission Fite No. 1-13647~
Amendment No. 4 to Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of December 31, 2001 among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollar, Thrifty, DTG,
Bankers Trust Company, Bank One, NA, The Bank of Nova Scotia, Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp. and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit
with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, filed March 20, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 3 to Series 1997-1 Supplement dated as of December 21, 2001 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 2 to Series 1999-1 Supplement dated as of December 21, 2001 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002, Commission Fite No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 1 to Series 2001-1 Supplement dated as of December 21, 2001 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 5 to Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of January 31, 2002 among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollay, Thrifty, DTG,
Bankers Trust Company, Bank One, NA, The Bank of Nova Scotia, Dresdner Bank AG, Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp. and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 2 to Series 2000-1 Supplemerit dated as of January 31, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 2 to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of January 31, 2002 among Rental Car Finance Cosp., DTG, the Conduit Purchasers parties thereto, the
Committed Purchasers parties thereto, the Managing Agents parties thereto, and Bank One, NA, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*
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4.58

459

460

4.62

4.63

4.64

465

466

467

4.68

469

4.70

4.72

473

474

475

476

Addendum No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Master Collateral Agency Agreement dated as of January 31, 2002 among DTG, Rental Car Finance Corp., Thrifty,
Dollar and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002,
Commission File No, 1-13647*

Collateral Assignment of Exchange Agreement dated as of January 31, 2002 by and among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollar, Thrifty and Bankers Trust Company, filed
as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Farm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Amended and Restated Series 1998-1 Supplement dated as of February 26, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 5 to Liquidity Agreement dated as of February 26, 2002 among Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., certain financial institutions, as the Liquidity Lenders,
and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002, filed May 10, 2002,
Commission Fite No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 3 to Series 2000-1 Supplement dated as of April 16, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly
known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly pericd ended June 30, 2002, filed August 13, 2002,
Commission File No. 1-13647”

Amendment No. 3 to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of April 16, 2002 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG, the Conduit Purchasers parties thereto, the
Committed Purchasers parties thereto, the Managing Agents parties thereto, and Bank One, NA, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amended and Restated Addendum No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Master Collateral Agency Agreement dated as of April 16, 2002 by and among DTG, Rental Car
Finance Carp., Thrifty, Dollar and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amended and Restated Collateral Assignment of Exchange Agreement dated as of April 16, 2002 by and among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dollar, Thrifty, and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Series 2002-1 Supplement dated as of June 4, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, filed as the same numbered
exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002, fited August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of May 22, 2002, among Rental Car Finance Corp., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation, J.P.
Morgan Securities, Inc., Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein-Grantchester, Inc., ING Financial Markets LLC and Scotia Capital (USA) Inc., filed as the same numbered
exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amended and Restated Addendum to the Amended and Restated Master Collateral Agency Agreement dated as of June 4, 2002 by and among DTG, Rental Car
Finance Corp., Thrifty, Dallar and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amended and Restated Collateral Assignment of Exchange Agreement dated as of June 4, 2002 by and among Rental Car Finance Corp., Dailar, Thrifty, and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Enhancement Letter of Credit Application and Agreement dated as of June 4, 2002 amang Dollar, Thrifty, Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG and Credit Suisse First
Bostan, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 3G, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*
Amendment No. 4 to Series 1997-1 Supplement dated as of August 12, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, filed
November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Series 1998-1 Supplement dated as of August 12, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September
30, 2002, filed November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 3 to Series 1999-1 Supplement dated as of August 12, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, filed
November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 4 to Series 2000-1 Supplement dated as of August 12, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, filed
November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 2 to Series 2001-1 Supplement dated as of August 12, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, filed
November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*
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Amendment No. 1 to Series 2002-1 Supplement dated as of August 12, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, filed as
the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, filed November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*
Natice of Additional Ownership Group Becoming Party to Note Purchase Agreement from Rental Gar Finance Corp. dated as of August 15, 2002, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, filed November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Addendum to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15, 2002 among ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Amsterdam Funding Corporation, Rental Car Finance Corp. and
Bank One, NA, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, filed November 12, 2002, Commission
File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 5 to Series 2000-1 Supplemen! dated as of August 15, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, filed
November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647

Amendment Agreement dated as of December 8, 2002 among DTG, DTG Operations, inc., formerly known as Dollar Rent A Car Systems, Inc., Thrifty, Various
Financial Institutions named therein, Credit Suisse First Boston and JPMorgan Chase Bank, formerly known as The Chase Manhattan Bank, including the Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 6, 2002 among DTG, DTG Operations, Inc., formerly known as Dollar Rent A Car Systems, Inc.,
Thrifty, Various Financial Institutions named therein, Credit Suisse First Boston and JPMorgan Chase Bank, formerly known as The Chase Manhattan Bank, attached
thereto as Annex |, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission File
No. 1-13647*

Second Amended and Restated Series 1997-1 Latter of Credit Agreement dated as of December 6, 2002 among DTG Operations, Inc., formerly known as Dollar Rent A
Car Systems, Inc., Thrifty, Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Series 1998-1 Supplement dated as of December 12, 2002 between Rental Gar Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647"

Amendment No. 6 to Series 2000-1 Supplement dated as of December 12, 2002 between Rentaf Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 18,
2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 4 to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of December 12, 2002 amang Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG, the Conduit Purchasers parties thereto, the
Committed Purchasers parties thereto, the Managing Agents parties thereto, and The Bank of Nova Scotia, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission Fite No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 3 to Series 2001-1 Supplement dated as of December 12, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 18,
2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 2 to Series 2002-1 Supplement dated as of December 12, 2002 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, filed
as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647"

Addendum No. 3 to the Amended and Restated Master Collateral Agency Agreement dated as of December 12, 2002 among DTG, Rental Car Finance Corp., Thrifty,
DTG Operations, inc., formerly known as Dollar Rent A Car Systems, Inc., and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company,
filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*
Amendment No. 1 to Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of December 12, 2002 amang Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG Operations, Inc.,
formerly known as Dollar Rent A Car Systems, Inc., Thrifty, DTG, Ambac Assurance Corporation and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit
with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Jecember 31, 2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 6 to Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of December 12, 2002 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG Operations, Inc.,
formerly known as Dollar Rent A Car Systems, Inc., Thrifty, DTG, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, The Bank of
Nova Scotia, Dresdner Bank AG, ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp. and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 51, 2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Series 1998-1 Supplement dated as of February 24, 2003 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647
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Amendment No. 7 to Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of February 24, 2003 among Rental Car Finance Carp., DTG Operations, tnc.,
formerly known as Dollar Rent A Car Systems, Inc., DTG, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, The Bank of Nova
Scotia, Dresdner Bank AG, ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp. and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Extension Agreement dated as of February 24, 2003 amaong Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., certain financial institutions, as the Liquidity Lenders, and Credit Suisse
First Boston, filzd as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File

No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 6 to Liquidity Agreement dated as of February 24, 2003 among Dollar Thrifty Funding Corp., certain financial institutions, as the Liquidity Lenders,
and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003,
Commission Fi.e No. 1-13647*

First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of March 7, 2003 among DTG, DTG Operations, Inc., formerly known as Dallar Rent A
Car Systems, Inc., Thrifty, Various Financial Institutions named therein and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 7 to Series 2000-1 Supplement dated as of March 18, 2003 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly
known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003,
Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 5 to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of March 18, 2003 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG, the Conduit Purchasers parties thereto, the
Committed Purchasers parties thereto, the Managing Agents parties thereto, and The Bank of Nova Scotia, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Series 2003-1 Supplement dated as of March 25, 2003 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, filed as the same numbered
exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647"

Note Purchase Agresment dated as of March 19, 2003 among Rental Car Finance Corp., J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Credit Suisse
First Boston LLC, Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein Securities LLC and Scotia Capital (USA) Inc., filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

indemnification Agreement dated as of March 19, 2003 among Rental Car Finance Corp., MBIA Insurance Corparation, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc., Credit Suisse First Boston LLC, Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein Securities LLC and Scotia Capitat (USA) Inc., filed as the same numbered exhibit with
DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Enhancement Letter of Credit Application and Agreement dated as of March 25, 2003 among DTG Operations, Inc., Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG and Credit Suisse
First Baston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File

No. 1-13647

Amendment No. 2 to Master Motor Vehicle Lease and Servicing Agreement dated as of March 25, 2003 amang Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG Operations, Inc.,
formerly known as Dollar Rent A Car Systems, inc., DTG, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, Ambac Assurance
Corporation, MBIA Insurance Corporation, Credit Suisse First Boston, JPMorgan Chase Bank and Dresdner Bank AG, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Farm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 4 to Series 2001-1 Supplement dated as of March 25, 2003 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly
known as Bankers Trust Company, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003,
Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 3 to Series 2002-1 Supplement dated as of March 25, 2003 between Rental Car Finance Corp. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, filed as
the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, filed May 14, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 31, 2003 among DTG, DTG Operations, Inc., formerly known as Dollar Rent
A Car Systems, Inc., Thrifty, Various Financial Institutions named therein and Credit Suisse First Boston, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Amendment No. 8 to Series 2000-1 Supplement dated as of December 10, 2003 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG Operations, Inc., formerly known as Dollar
Rent A Car Systems, Inc., DTG, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, Credit Suisse First Boston, The Bank of Nova
Scotia, ABN AMRQ Bank N.V.,, and Dresdner Bank AG**

Amendment No. 6 to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of December 10, 2003 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG, the Conduit Purchasers parties thereto, the
Committed Purchasers parties thereto, the Managing Agents parties thereto, and The Bank of Nova Scotia™

Employment Continuation Plan for Key Employees of Dollar Thrifty Automative Group, Inc., which became effective September 29, 1998, filed as the same numbered
exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1998, filed November 16, 1998, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. Retirement Plan, as adopted by the Company eftective December 5, 1998 (the instrument filed herewith replaces the instrument
previously filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, filed March 19, 1999), filed as the same numbered
exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2001, filed August 13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*
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10.6

10.7

108

10.10

1013

10.14

10.15

10.16

1017

10.18

1019

10.21

10.22

10.24

10.26

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

21

232

233

234
235

236
237

23.8
238
2310

Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan, as adopted by the Company pursuant to the Adoption Agreement (Exhibit 10.7), filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-89189, filed October 15, 1999

Adoption Agreement #005 Nonstandardized Code Section 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan of Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, as amended, filed as the same numbered
exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-89189, filed Qctober 15, 1999*

Pentastar Transportation Group, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Registration Staterment on Form S-1, as amended,
Registration No. 333-39661, which became effective December 16, 1997*

Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Registration Statement an Form S-1, as amended,
Registration No. 333-39661, which became effective December 16, 1997*

Amendment to Long-Term Incentive Plan dated as of September 29, 1998, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, filed
May 28, 1999*

Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan dated as of September 29, 1998, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-33144,
filed March 23, 2000*

Second Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan dated as of September 23, 1999, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration

No. 333-33144, filed March 23, 2000

Third Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan dated as of January 14, 2000, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration

No. 333-33144, filed March 23, 2000”

First Amendment to Retirement Plan dated as of September 23, 1999, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-33146, filed
March 23, 2000*

Second Amendment to Retirement Plan dated as of January 14, 2000, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-33146, filed
March 23, 2000

Second Amendment to Long-Term Incentive Plan dated as of May 25, 2000, filed as the same numbered exhibit with OTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
Jung 30, 2000, filed August 9, 2000, Commission File No. 1-13647*

First Amendment to Employment Continuation Plan for Key Employees, which became effective January 24, 2001, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2001, filed May 11, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Adoption, Consent and Third Amendment to Reiirement Plan dated as of July 1, 2000, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended September 3C, 200, filed November 13, 2000, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Second Amendment to Employment Continuation Plan for Key Employees, which became effective April 23, 2001, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2001, filed August 13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Third Amendment to Employment Continuation Plan for Key Employees, which became effective May 7, 2001, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2001, filed August 13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Fourth Amendment to Employment Continuation Plan for Key Employses, which became effective November 13, 2001, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, filed March 20, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Doilar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc., Executive Option Plan effective June 1, 2002, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Vehicle Supply Agreement dated as of October 31, 2002 between DaimlerChrysler Motors Company, LLC and DTG, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Fifth Amendment to Employment Continuation Plan for Key Employees, which became effective October 1, 2003, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647"

Letter Agreement dated as of October 20, 2003 amending the Vehicle Supply Agreement between DaimlerChrysler Motors Company, LLC and DTG, filed as the same
numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Employment and Retirement Agreement dated September 26, 2003 between DTG and Joseph E. Cappy**

Subsidiaries of DTG**

Consent ot Debevoise & Plimpton, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, Registration No. 333-38661,
which became effective December 16, 1997*

Consent of Donovan Leisure Newton & frvine LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, Registration No.
333-39661, which became effective December 16, 1997~

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, filed May 28, 1999*

Consent of Hall, Estill, Hardwick, Gable, Golder: & Nelson, P.C., filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, filed May 28,
1999

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration Na. 333-89189, filed October 15, 1399~

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, filed March 22, 2000,
Commission File No. 1-13647*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-33144, filed March 23, 2000*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-33144, filed March 23, 2000*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as exhibit 23.8 with DTG’s Form 11-K for the fiscal year ended Decerber 31, 1499, filed June 28, 2000, Commission File No.
1-13647~
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2311

23.12
2313

23.14

2315

23.18

2317

2318

2319

2320

23.21

317
318
327
328

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as exhibit 23.9 with DTG's Form 11-K/A for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, filed October 16, 2000, Commission
File No. 1-13647~

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form S-8, Registration No. 333-50800, filed November 28, 2000”

Consent of Hall, Estill, Hardwick, Gable, Golden & Nelson, P.C, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form S-8, Registration No. 333-50800, filed November
28, 2000"

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding DTG's Forms S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, Registration No. 333-83189, Registration No. 333-33144, Registration
No. 333-33146 and Registration No. 333-50800, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, filed March
13, 2001, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG’s Form 11-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, filed June 28, 2001,
Commission File No. 1-13647*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding DTG's Forms S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, Registration No. 333-89189, Registration No. 333-33144, Registration
No. 333-33146 and Registration No. 333-50800, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, filed March
20, 2002, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 11-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, filed June 19, 2002,
Commission File No. 1-13647*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding DTG's Forms S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, Registration No. 333-89189, Registration No. 333-33144, Registration
No. 333-33146 and Registration No. 333-50800, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed March
18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647~

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-89189, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form
11-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed June 27, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding DTG's Forms S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, Registration No. 333-89189, Registration No. 333-33144, Registration
No. 333-33146 and Registration No. 333-50800, filed as the same numbered exhibit with DTG's Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed
December 18, 2003, Commission File No. 1-13647*

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding DTG's Forms S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, Registration No. 333-89189, Registration No. 333-33144, Registration
No. 333-33146 and Registration No. 333-50800"

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Cxiey Act of 2002**

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**

Incorporated by reference
Filed herewith

Report on Form 8-K

During the quarter ended December 31, 2003, and between such date and the filing of this Form 10-K, the Company filed or furnished the following reports
on Form 8-K:

Current report on Form 8-K dated October 29, 2003, included press release reporting the financial resulis of the Company for the quarter ended September 30, 2003.

Current report on Form 8-K dated January 16, 2004, included press release announcing the implementation of an accounting change effective in the fourth quarter
of 2003,

Current report on Form 8-K dated February 5, 2004, included press release reporting the financial results of the Company for the quarter and year ended December
31,2003,

Filed Exhibits

The response tc this item is submitted as a separate section of this report.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date:  March 12, 2004

Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, Inc.

By: /s/ GARY L. PAXTON
Name: Gary L. Paxton
Title: Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
s GARY L. PAXTON Chief Executive Officer March 12, 2004
Gary L. Paxton President

and Director

/[sfSTEVEN B. HILDEBRAND Senior Executive Vice President March 12, 2004
Steven B. Hildebrand Principal Financial Officer
Principal Accounting Officer

/ssMOLLY S. BOREN Director March 12, 2004
Molly S. Boren

/ssTHOMAS P. CAPO Chairman of the Board March 12, 2004
Thomas P. Capo and Director
/s MARYANN N. KELLER Director March 12, 2004

Maryann N. Keller

/ISEDWARD C. LUMLEY Director March 12, 2004
Edward C. Lumley

fssfTJTOHN C. POPE Director March 12, 2004
John C. Pope
/sfJOHN P. TIERNEY Director March 12, 2004

John P Tierney

/S EDWARD L. WAX Director March 12, 2004
Edward L. Wax
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NDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
No. Description

4106  Amendment No. 8 to Series 2000-1 Supplement dated as of December 10, 2003 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG Operations, Inc., formerly known as Dallar
Rent A Car Systems, Inc., DTG, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, formerly known as Bankers Trust Company, Credit Suisse First Boston, The Bank of Nova
Scotia, ABN AMRO Bank N.V., and Dresdner Bank AG

4107 Amendment No. 6 to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of December 10, 2003 among Rental Car Finance Corp., DTG, the Conduit Purchasers parties thereto, the
Committed Purchasers parties thereto, the Managing Agents parties thereto, and The Bank of Nova Scotia

10.33  Employment and Retirement Agreement dated September 26, 2003 between DTG and Joseph E. Cappy

21 Subsidiaries of DTG

23.21  Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding DTG's Forms S-8, Registration No. 333-79603, Registration No. 333-89189, Registration No. 333-33144, Registration
No. 333-33146 and Registration No. 333-50800

37 Certification by the Chief Executive Qfficer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Qxley Act of 2002

31.8 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

327 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

328 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

{Exhibits omitted from Annual Report)
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